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Introduction

This Annual Report is being provided by the City of San Diego (the “City”) on behalf of
itself, the San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corporation (the “Corporation”), the Public
Facilities Financing Authority of the City of San Diego (the “PFFA”), the City of San Diego/MTDB
Authority (the “MTDB Authority”), and the Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority (“the
Convention Center Authority””) for the above stated issuances pursuant to Continuing Disclosure
Agreements (entered into to allow the respective underwriters to comply with Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15¢2-12) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2009.

Attached is the City’s Fiscal Year 2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(“CAFR?”), which includes the City’s Fiscal Year 2009 audited financial statements. On December 21,
2009, Macias Gini and O’Connell LLP, the City’s outside auditor, issued an unqualified opinion of the
City’s Financial Statements as presented in the CAFR. On January 25, 2010, the City Council Audit
Committee forwarded the CAFR to City Council and on February 1, 2010, the City Council received
and filed the CAFR.

This Annual Report, including any amendment or supplement hereto, will be
electronically transmitted by the Dissemination Agent to the Electronic Municipal Market Access
(“EMMA”) System of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”).

This Annual Report is provided in accordance with the terms of the Continuing
Disclosure Agreements, and does not purport to provide full and complete information on the terms of
the above stated issuances. The filing of this Annual Report does not constitute or imply any
representation that no changes, circumstances or events have occurred since the end of the Fiscal Year
to which this Annual Report relates (other than as contained in this Annual Report), or that no other
information exists, which may have a bearing on the security for the above stated issuances or an
investor’s decision to buy, sell or hold the above-stated issuances. Certain information and data
provided herein was obtained from sources other than the City (“Outside Information”), as indicated by
the source citations. Although the information contained in this Annual Report has been obtained from
sources that are believed to be reliable, the City has not independently verified such Outside
Information, and the City cannot guarantee its completion or accuracy. No statement in this Annual
Report should be construed as a prediction or representation about future financial performance of the
City, the Corporation, the PFFA, the Convention Center Authority, or the MTDB Authority.

The City is acting as the Dissemination Agent for each of the above stated issuances.
The City does not have any obligation to update this report other than as expressly provided in the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement for each of the above stated issuances.

Any statements regarding the above stated issuances, other than a statement made by the
City in an official release or subsequent notice or annual report that is filed with the MSRB’s EMMA
system, are not authorized by the City. The City shall not be responsible for the accuracy,
completeness, or fairness of any such unauthorized statement.
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Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

As required by the Continuing Disclosure Agreements or Certificates for the issuances
covered by this Annual Report, below are updates of the required certain tabular information
from the Official Statements and updates of information under the captions “Labor Relations”,
“Pension Plan”, “Public Liability Insurance”, and “Investment of Funds.”

1. Transient Occupancy Tax

Refer to the Unaudited Statistical Section, Table 2 “Changes in Net Assets”, to the Fiscal
Year 2009 CAFR.

2. Building Permit VValuations and Number of Dwelling Units

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
ASSESSED VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION PERMIT VALUATION
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2009
($ in thousands)

Residential® Non-Residential®

Total Permit
Fiscal Assessed Assessed Assessed Value
Year Dwelling Units Value® Permits Value® Estimate®
2005 3,961 $941,561 221 $1,216,258 $2,157,819
2006 3,702 762,811 272 1,266,451 2,029,262
2007 3,540 587,520 217 1,035,183 1,622,703
2008 2,228 437,934 175 931,648 1,369,582
2009 1,117 202,268 138 576,879 779,147

@ Residential reflects construction of new structures.
@ Non-residential reflects construction of new structures whose intended use includes commercial, industrial, and other uses.

Each permit is a separate structure.
@ valuation figures only include valuation of newly created structures. These figures do not include minor modification work

such as interior remodels, reroofs, etc. Total permit Assessed Value is an estimate determined at time of permit issuance;
actuals may vary.

Source: Development Services Department, City of San Diego; Permit Tracking System
Database



3.

Balance Sheet For The General Fund

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
BALANCE SHEET FOR THE GENERAL FUND
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2005 through 2009
(in thousands)

(audited)
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
ASSETS
Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash &
Investments®® $32,966 $23,281 $97,347 $91,439 $86,667
Receivables:
Taxes — Net 65,056 68,568 73,296 76,527 69,438
Accounts — Net 14,823 11,239 11,103 11,195 13,891
Claims — Net 31 38 88 78 130
Accrued Interest 891 1,434 3,466 2,395 906
From Other Funds @ 16,275 6,060 1,475 1,600 1,500
Investment in Joint Venture 1,542 2,063 2,097 1,981 1,824
Advances to Other Funds 300 300 300 -- --
Advances to Other Agencies -- 9 9 9 --
Prepaid Items @ 778 220 81 82 886
Cash and Investments for TRANS
Repayment . - 142,000 116,383 -
Total Assets $132,662 $113,212 $331,262 $301,689 $175,242
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable ©® 5,054 5,642 9,112 8,005 3,789
Accrued Wages and Benefits 40,960 22,332 23,881 22,265 27,642
Due to Other Funds ©® - - - 2,479 2,095
Unearned Revenue 1,151 1,032 903 784 663
Deferred Revenue 23,464 21,580 23,318 27,375 26,661
Advances from Other Funds 985 985 -- -- --
Contracts and Notes Payable® -- -- 142,000 116,000 --
Total Liabilities 71,614 51,571 199,214 176,908 60,850
FUND EQUITY
Reserves:
Reserved for Encumbrances © 15,659 18,916 33,452 43,853 32,071
Reserved for Advances & Deposits 300 309 309 9 --
Reserved for Investment in Joint
Venture 1,542 2,063 2,097 1,981 1,824
Unreserved:
Designated for Unrealized Gains . - - 2737 1,043
Designated for Subsequent Years’
Expenditures 1,954 469 1,159 862 207
Undesignated 41,593 39,884 95,031 75,339 78,347
Total Fund Equity 61,048 61,641 132,048 124,781 114,392
Total Liabilities & Fund Equity $132,662 $113,212 $331,262 $301,689 $175,242

(1) Continued expenditure savings due to vacancies and management imposed reductions in discretionary spending have resulted
in the City maintaining a relatively stable cash position in the General Fund.

(2) Advances from the General Fund to Grant Funds to cover negative year end balances decreased in Fiscal Year 2007 due to
improvements in the timing of grant invoicing.
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Fiscal Year 2009 year end Prepaid Items increased and Accounts Payable decreased due to prepayment of July rents and an
early close of the Accounts Payable System to facilitate the transition to a new accounting system on July 1, 2009.

Fiscal Years 2005, 2006, and 2009 TRANSs were issued and repaid within the same fiscal year, while Fiscal Years 2008 and
2007 TRANSs were 13 month notes.

In Fiscal Year 2008, Accounts Payable decreased while Due to Other Funds increased due to a change in the treatment of San
Diego Data Processing Corporation (SDDPC) accruals. Because SDDPC is a blended component unit of the City, the City
began booking accruals between the City and SDDPC as Due To/Due From rather than as receivables/payables.

During Fiscal Year 2007, the Streets Division became part of the General Fund, resulting in an increase in ending
encumbrances. In Fiscal Year 2009, encumbrances decreased as a result of revised procedures for releasing encumbrances in
the General Fund, as well as the transfer of slurry seal costs and related encumbrances from the Streets Division to Grant
Funds.

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2008, a decrease in interest rates led to an increase in the price of fixed income securities, which
resulted in unrealized gains. In Fiscal Year 2009, a significant amount of the City’s unrealized gains were realized through the
City Pool’s normal rebalancing process, resulting in an overall decrease in Designated for Unrealized Gains at year end.

Source: Fiscal Year 2005 — 2009: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank



4.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance For The General

Fund
CITY OF SAN DIEGO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE FOR THE GENERAL FUND
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2005 through 2009
(in thousands)
(audited)
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
REVENUES:
Property Taxes @ $223,500 $322,087 $361,062 $384,273 $398,743
Sales Taxes@® @ 95,376 110,556 233,385 235,579 212,918
In-Lieu Sales Taxes ©® 48,220 45,433 - - -
Transient Occupancy Taxes © 63,910 72,126 80,703 83,730 73,765
Other Local Taxes 73,456 72,102 74,069 71,594 72,432
Licenses and Permits 28,459 31,913 31,475 33,815 31,249
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 31,857 32,346 40,346 31,083 32,467
Revenues from Use of Money and Property 33,015 35,872 42,157 44,577 41,461
Revenues from Federal Agencies 6,888 3,755 5,066 4,086 4,268
Revenues from Other Agencies @ 74,571 12,594 16,644 14,236 8,915
Charges for Current Services © 105,293 91,514 85,026 87,263 133,117
Other Revenue 2,778 2,864 2,730 3,297 5,296
Total Revenues 787,323 833,162 972,663 993,533 1,014,631
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government and Other Support Services © 164,892 183,143 189,203 225,570 243,057
Neighborhood Services 25,137 19,702 18,339 18,563 17,255
Public Safety 478,299 509,264 517,522 562,975 584,986
Parks, Recreation and Culture 106,274 108,153 112,967 119,125 116,391
Transportation 21,448 23,032 59,516 66,162 72,635
Sanitation and Health % 41,024 41,720 39,391 48,995 67,867
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement @ 2,381 2,504 2,604 2,204 818
Interest % 1,811 3,416 6,519 5,720 3,106
Total Expenditures 841,266 890,934 946,061 1,049,314 1,106,115
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (53,943)  (57,772) 26,602 (55,781) (91,484)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Proprietary Funds 7,039 2,989 4,181 5,896 6,267
Transfers from Other Funds ¥ 58,913 71,672 86,980 94,562 105,059
Transfers to Proprietary Funds (1,185) (246) (1,373) (5,358) (4,043)
Transfers to Other Funds ®® (14,276)  (21,946)  (46,018) (46,470) (26,031)
Net Income (Loss) from Joint Venture 20 522 35 (116) (157)
Proceeds from Capital Leases *® 3,258 5,374 - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 53,769 58,365 43,805 48,514 81,095
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING (174) 593 70,407 (7,267) (10,389)
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
USES
FUND BALANCE AT JULY 1 61,222 61,048 61,641 132,048 124,781
FUND BALANCE AT FOLLOWING JUNE 30 $61,048 $61,641  $132,048 $124,781 $114,392

(1) Beginning in Fiscal Year 2006, the Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (ERAF) Il monies received from the State
($70,550,958) intended to replace the Motor Vehicle License Fees backfill were classified as Property Tax revenue. This revenue was

previously classified as Motor Vehicle License Fees, under “Revenues from Other Agencies”.

(2) Includes Proposition 172 Safety Sales Tax. Beginning with Fiscal Year 2007, Sales Tax revenue is recorded entirely in the General
Fund and then transferred out, as an expense, to the Sales Tax supported funds. Prior to Fiscal Year 2007, Sales Tax was allocated to

the Sales Tax supported funds as Sales Tax revenue.

(3) Beginning in Fiscal Year 2007, “In-Lieu Sales Tax” is reported with Sales Tax revenue. In prior years, it was received with the

Property Tax apportionments and reported separately from Sales Tax.
(4) Sales Tax revenue decreased by $22.7 million in Fiscal Year 2009 due to the economic downturn.

(5) InLieu Sales Tax is the property tax reimbursement that the City receives as a result of the triple-flip (triple-flip is the shift enacted by
the State in Fiscal Year 2005 whereby local governments shift ¥-cent of their Sales and Use Tax to the State in exchange for an

equivalent amount of property tax).
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Source:

Includes the General Fund portion of Transient Occupancy Tax (5.5% of the 10.5% levy); the balance (5.0% of the 10.5% levy) is
allocated to Special Promotional Programs. Of this 5% balance, approximately 1% may be budgeted in the General Fund as
discretionary revenue and for Special Promotional Programs in the General Fund. Transient Occupancy Tax decreased by $10.0
million in Fiscal Year 2009 due to the economic downturn.

Revenue from Other Agencies decreased in Fiscal Year 2009 due to a decrease in revenue from California State Grants. In Fiscal
Year 2008, the City received a large reimbursement of $5.4 million for debris removal related to the 2007 October Wildfires.

Charges for Current Services increased by $45.9 million in Fiscal Year 2009 due to the consolidation of the Engineering & Capital
Projects Department into the General Fund. This creates revenue through personnel charges against capital projects, and the
corresponding return of revenue to the General Fund.

General Government and Other Support Services increased in Fiscal Year 2009 due to the consolidation of the Engineering & Capital
Projects Department into the General Fund. There were also decreases in this category due to the reclassification of Storm Water
Department into Sanitation and Health.

Transportation increased in Fiscal Year 2009 due to the consolidation of the Engineering & Capital Projects Department into the
General Fund.

Sanitation and Health increased due to the addition of the Storm Water Department, previously reported within General Government
and Other Support Services.

Principal Retirement decreased in Fiscal Year 2009 due to Police and Fire Master Leases being funded from the Seized Asset fund
instead of the General Fund.

The majority of the decrease in Interest expense in Fiscal Year 2009 is due to the TRAN note being held for a shorter time; it was
issued and repaid within Fiscal Year 2009, while the Fiscal Years 2007 and 2008 TRANs were 13 month notes (Fiscal Years 2005 and
2006 TRANS were issued and repaid within the same Fiscal Year). A second reason for the decrease in Interest is due to Police and
Fire Master Leases being moved from the General Fund and funded from the Seized Asset Fund.

Increase in Transfers from Other Funds is primarily due to the State of California delaying $4.5 million in Fiscal Year 2008 Gas Tax
payments until Fiscal Year 2009.

The majority of the variance between Fiscal Year 2009 and Fiscal Year 2008 in Transfers to Other Funds is due to the transfers in
Fiscal Year 2008 to Capital Improvement Funds from the Storm Water Department and Streets Division. These transfers did not
reoccur in Fiscal Year 2009.

The General Fund had no new Capital Leases to report in Fiscal Years 2007 through 2009.

Fiscal Year 2005 — 2009: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank



Operating Budget Summary

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY
Fiscal Years 2009-2010
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2009 Fiscal Year 2010
Original Adopted Budget
Actuals on a Budgetary Basis (July 1, 2009)
REVENUE SOURCES:
Property Tax $398,743 $382,628
Sales Tax @ 212,918 217,199
Property Transfer Tax 4,592 4,511
Transient Occupancy Tax @ 73,765 75,907
Licenses and Permits 31,249 32,374
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 32,467 32,294
Interest Earnings © 384 4,092
Franchises 67,840 73,717
Other Rents and Concessions 41,868 45,990
Motor Vehicle License Fees 4,650 3,900
Revenue from Other Agencies 8,533 8,472
Charges for Current Services 133,117 138,571
Transfers from Other Funds 111,326 108,493
Other Revenue 5,296 1,558
Net Income (Loss) from Joint Venture (157) 0
Total General Fund Revenues and Transfers® $1,126,591 $1,129.706
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety $588,103 $572,992
Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure 120,573 122,104
Sanitation and Health 81,462 38,878
Transportation 75,562 62,344
Neighborhood Services 19,416 19,317
General Government and Support 249,134 241,840
Debt Service ® 3,924 11,553
Transfers 30,074 60,679
Total General Fund Expenditures and Transfers $1.168.248 OO $1,129,706

@ Includes Proposition 172 Safety Sales Tax and “triple flip” amounts.

@ Includes the General Fund portion of Transient Occupancy Tax (5.5% of the 10.5% levy); the balance (5.0% of the 10.5% levy) is allocated to Special
Promotional Programs. Of this 5% balance, approximately 1% may be budgeted in the General Fund as discretionary revenue and for Special Promotional
Programs in the General Fund.

©  Fiscal Year 2010 Original Adopted Budget does not include interest earnings from the Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes Fund, which relates to the Fiscal
Year 2009 TRAN borrowing which matured on July 1, 2009.

@ Line items may not add to totals due to independent rounding.

® Fiscal Year 2010 Original Adopted Budget includes only the General Fund portion of debt service interest expenses transferred to the Tax and Revenue
Anticipation Notes Fund.

® Fiscal Year 2009 Actuals on a Budgetary Basis does not include $10.0 million General Fund Appropriated Reserve. An Appropriated Reserve may be
maintained for the purpose of paying for unanticipated operational needs that arise during the Fiscal Year, but which were not anticipated during the budget
process. The Appropriation Ordinance authorized and directed that the expenditure appropriations of the General Fund Appropriated Reserve be increased by
$10.0 million from the General Fund Unappropriated Reserve.

Y The excess of budgetary expenditures over revenues is primarily the result of outstanding encumbrances as of June 30, 2009. In addition, the General Fund
experienced an approximate $10.4 million reduction of fund equity in Fiscal Year 2009.

Source:  Fiscal Year 2009: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego
Fiscal Year 2010 Original Adopted Budget, Financial Management, City of San Diego



GENERAL FUND REVENUE
Property TaxW®

Sales Tax

Safety Sales Tax

Transient Occupancy Tax®
Property Transfer Tax

Interest Earnings

Franchises

Motor Vehicle License Fees
Refuse Collector Business Tax
Transfers from Other Funds

Administration
City Attorney

City Auditor

City Clerk

City Comptroller

City Council

City Planning and Community
Investment

City Treasurer

Community and Legislative Services

Debt Management

Development Services
Engineering and Capital Projects
Environmental Services
Financial Management
Fire-Rescue

General Services

Library

Office of Homeland Security
Office of the Chief Financial Officer
Park and Recreation

Personnel

Police

Purchasing and Contracting

Real Estate Assets

Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Water (Reservoir Recreation)
TOTAL GENERAL FUND
REVENUE @

CITY OF SAN DIEGO

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY

Fiscal Year 2010

Fiscal Years 2009-2010

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2011

Proposed General

Revised Adopted Fund Budget
Budget (December (December 9,
9, 2009) 2009)

$ 358,048 $ 391,549

210,141 176,279

7,058 6,412

76,169 71,916

4,511 4,872

4,091 3,242

73,587 74,988

3,900 3,978

1,000 1,010

82,502 86,941

254 258

6,183 6,351

122 125

50 69

2,633 2,596

215 219

2,762 2,806

26,236 25,151

1,587 1,644

1,138 1,157

810 830

63,400 64,596

1,144 1,158

331 220

16,155 14,818

42,603 39,995

1,539 1,568

916 917

500 510

29,843 28,433

74 75

38,956 39,563

797 811

41,795 42,156

9,109 9,262

1,836 1,836

1,111,995 $ 1,108,308

GENERAL FUND
EXPENDITURES
Administration

Business Office

City Attorney

City Auditor

City Clerk

City Comptroller

City Council

City Planning and Community
Investment

City Treasurer

Citywide Program Expenditures
Community and Legislative
Services

Debt Management
Department of Information
Technology

Development Services
Engineering and Capital Projects
Environmental Services

Ethics Commission

Financial Management
Fire-Rescue

General Fund Appropriated
Reserve

General Services

Human Resources

Library

Office of Homeland Security
Office of the Assistant COO
Office of the Chief Financial
Officer

Office of the IBA

Office of the Mayor and COO
Park and Recreation
Personnel

Police

Public Works

Purchasing and Contracting
Real Estate Assets

Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Water (Reservoir Recreation)
TOTAL GENERAL FUND
EXPENDITURES

Fiscal Year 2010

Fiscal Year 2011

Proposed
General Fund
Revised Adopted Budget
Budget (December (December 9,

9, 2009) 2009)
$ 3,813 $ 3,744
1,296 1,184
37,786 37,497
2,531 2,627
4,317 4,452
10,467 8,672
9,370 9,750
14,261 10,146
17,403 16,995
52,921 52,142
5,878 5,765
2,527 2,381
16,235 15,912
6,400 6,355
62,651 63,949
36,873 33,641
866 850
3,686 3,578
183,017 183,344
1,667 -
65,557 62,258
2,332 2,201
35,308 34,481
1,536 1,589
429 353
878 903
1,453 1,508
642 661
84,426 84,039
6,106 6,034
393,161 405,982
309 316
4,054 3,884
3,679 3,631
36,165 35,460
1,995 2,025
$ 1,111,995 $ 1,108,308

(1) Includes Proposition 172 Safety Sales Tax and “triple flip” amounts.
(2) Total City Fiscal Year 2010 Revised Adopted Budget for property tax revenue is $382.6 million and the mid-year projection of year-end revenue is $390.6 million. From
the $390.6 million, $24.6 million is set aside in a special reserve fund to mitigate the Fiscal Year 2011 projected shortfall identified in the FY 2011-2015 Five Year

Financial Outlook.

(3) Includes the General Fund portion of Transient Occupancy Tax (5.5% of the 10.5% levy); the balance (5.0% of the 10.5% levy) is allocated to Special Promotional
Programs. Of this 5% balance, approximately 1% may be budgeted in the General Fund as discretionary revenue and for Special Promotional Programs in the General

Fund.

(4) Line items may not add to totals due to independent rounding.

Source:

Fiscal Year 2010 Revised Adopted Budget, Financial Management, City of San Diego

Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund Budget, Financial Management, City of San Diego
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Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund Budget

On December 9, 2009, the City Council adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund
Budget. The Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund Budget reflects revenues and expenditures
totaling $1.11 billion, representing a decrease of $21.4 million or a 1.9% decline from the Fiscal Year
2010 Original Adopted Budget. The Fiscal Year 2011 General Fund Budget was adopted early to
mitigate a projected deficit of $179 million in Fiscal Year 2011 identified in the Fiscal Year 2011-15
Five Year Financial Outlook issued in October 2009. The projected deficit in Fiscal Year 2011 is
primarily due to the combination of a projected decline in some major revenue sources, and a projected
increase in expenditures resulting from the Annual Required Contribution to the City’s pension system
(the “ARC”) and a final payment for the settlement in McGuigan v. City of San Diego that was
expected to be paid in full in Fiscal Year 2011 and included in the Fiscal Year 2011-15 Five Year
Financial Outlook. The Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund Budget included one-time budget
actions totaling $96.6 million such as: a Fiscal Year 2011 suspension of reserve contributions to the
General Fund, Public Liability, and Workers’ Compensation reserves; a transfer to the General Fund of
undesignated fund balances that were set aside for purposes that are no longer relevant; a restructuring
of the McGuigan settlement payment over several years; and $24.6 million in savings set aside from
Fiscal Year 2010. The Fiscal Year 2011 on-going budget solutions in the approximate amount of $82.5
million included a reduction of personnel expenditures from the elimination of 486 General Fund FTE
positions and non-personnel expenditures.

Subsequent to the City Council adopting the Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund Budget,
the City received information from SDCERS, the City’s pension system, that the Annual Required
Contribution (“ARC”) would be approximately $19 million higher citywide, or $9.8 million higher for
the General Fund, than projected in the Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund Budget adopted by
City Council in December 2009. In addition, realized revenue in Fiscal Year 2010, primarily sales tax,
tourism tax and departmental revenues across the City were lower than expected in the first six months
of Fiscal Year 2010, creating a lower baseline for revenue projections in Fiscal Year 2011. As a result,
a new budget gap of approximately $30 million was identified for Fiscal Year 2011. It is anticipated
that the Mayor will present a newly balanced Fiscal Year 2011 budget by April 15, 2010 (the “Revised
Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund Budget”) for City Council’s consideration. Additionally, as
in prior years, any necessary amendments to the Revised Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed General Fund
Budget will be presented to the City Council in advance of the scheduled June 14, 2010 Fiscal Year
2011 budget approval date.

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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6. Assessed Valuation

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
ASSESSED VALUATION @@
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2001 through 2010
(in thousands except for percentages)
(unaudited)

Fiscal Annual
Year Assessed
Ending Secured Unsecured Less Net Assessed Valuation
June 30 Property Property Gross Total Exemptions®  Valuations ® % Change
2001 $ 82,311,127 $ 6,120,888 $ 88,432,015 $ 4,364,856 $ 84,067,159 --
2002 89,480,011 6,747,650 96,227,660 4,712,944 91,514,716 8.86
2003 96,751,483 6,838,410 103,589,893 4,336,637 99,253,256 8.46
2004 105,730,848 7,167,011 112,897,859 5,171,957 107,725,902 8.54
2005 115,305,637 6,724,787 122,030,424 4,872,423 117,158,002 8.76
2006 128,935,155 7,067,580 136,002,735 5,684,279 130,318,456 11.23
2007 142,036,802 7,629,006 149,665,808 5,867,546 143,798,261 10.34
2008 154,653,913 7,410,589 162,064,502 6,329,714 155,734,787 8.30
2009 162,580,727 7,880,341 170,461,068 6,795,274 163,665,794 5.09
2010 161,637,831 8,164,394 169,802,225 7,157,357 162,644,869 -0.62

@ The official date of assessment is the first day of January preceding the Fiscal Year during which taxes are levied. For example,
January 1, 2009 is the official assessment date for property taxes due during Fiscal Year 2010.

@ Does not include state assessed utility property.

®  The table differs from what is presented in the unaudited statistical section of the Fiscal Year 2009 CAFR to reflect uniform reporting

methodology and to accurately allocate Redevelopment base year values.

Inclusive of homeowners’ exemptions.

Net assessed valuation for tax purposes.

@
®

Source: MuniServices, LLC
7. Secured Tax Levies and Collections

Refer to the Unaudited Statistical Section, Table 8 “Property Tax Levies and Collections”, to the
Fiscal Year 2009 CAFR.

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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8.

Principal Property Taxpayers in City Of San Diego

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS IN CITY OF SAN DIEGO ®®®
Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2010
(in thousands, except for percentages)
Percentage of
Assessed Net Assessed  Amount

Taxpayers Type of Business Valuation®  Valuation®  of Tax

Irvine Co. ® Real Estate $1,719,809 0.96% $ 18,951
Kilroy Realty, LP ") Real Estate 1,424,156 0.79 15,688
Qualcomm, Inc ® Electronics 1,349,687 0.75 14,146
Arden Realty Ltd. Partnership © Real Estate 789,658 0.44 8,701
San Diego Family Housing, LLC"™®  Real Estate 686,255 0.38 7,562
One Park Boulevard LLC™ Hotel Management 532,398 0.30 5,867
Pfizer, Inc Pharmaceuticals 487,054 0.27 5,367
Fashion Valley Mall, LLC*? Developer 455,175 0.25 5,016
OCSD Holdings Real Estate 439,169 0.24 4,839
Sea World, Inc. Entertainment 421,064 0.23 4,640
TOTAL $8,304,425 4.61% $ 90,777

@ The official date of assessment is the first day of January preceding the Fiscal Year during which taxes are levied. For example,

January 1, 2009 is the official assessment date for property taxes due during Fiscal Year 2010.
@ Utility Companies excluded.
@ Includes redevelopment areas (base plus incremental value).
@ Total assessed valuation includes both secured and unsecured property; does not include supplemental assessments.
® Using total Net Assessed Valuation of $179,621,903,704 (in whole dollars) for Fiscal Year 2010.
®  Based on information provided by MuniServices LLC, this assessee has filed applications for assessment appeals for tax roll of 2009
(July 2008-June 2009) and tax roll of 2010 (July 2009-June 2010). These claims are still pending. Applicant is appealing assessed
value to be lowered by $248,958,281 (in whole dollars) for the tax roll 2009 and $55,973,297 (in whole dollars) for the tax roll 2010.
No assurance can be given of the outcome of the appeal.
Based on information provided by MuniServices LLC, this assessee has filed an application for assessment appeal for tax roll of 2009
(July 2008-June 2009) and tax roll of 2010 (July 2009-June 2010). The claims are still pending. Applicant is appealing assessed value
to be lowered by $58,872,696 (in whole dollars) for 2009 and $128,691,494 (in whole dollars) for 2010. No assurance can be given
of the outcome of the appeal.
Based on information provided by MuniServices LLC, this assessee has filed applications for assessment appeals for tax roll of 2008
(July 2007-June 2008) and tax roll 2009 (July 2008-June 2009). These claims are still pending. Applicant is appealing assessed value
to be lowered by $423,601,931 (in whole dollars) for the tax roll of 2008, and $187,513,211 (in whole dollars) for the tax roll of
2009. No assurance can be given of the outcome of the appeal.
Based on information provided by MuniServices LLC, this assessee has filed applications for assessment appeals for tax roll of 2009
(July 2008-June 2009) and tax roll of 2010 (July 2009-June 2010). These claims are still pending. Applicant is appealing assessed
value to be lowered by $150,422,710 (in whole dollars) for the tax roll of 2009, and $282,602,882 (in whole dollars) for tax roll of
2010. No assurance can be given of the outcome of the appeal.
Based on information provided by MuniServices LLC, this assessee has filed an application for assessment appeal for tax roll of 2010
(July 2009-June 2010). This claim is still pending. Applicant is appealing assessed value to be lowered by $183,000,888 (in whole
dollars). No assurance can be given of the outcome of the appeal.
Based on information provided by MuniServices LLC, this assessee has filed an application for assessment appeal for tax roll of 2010
(July 2009-June 2010). This claim is still pending. Applicant is appealing assessed value to be lowered by $556,579,327 (in whole
dollars). No assurance can be given of the outcome of the appeal.
Based on information provided by MuniServices LLC, this assessee has filed an application for assessment appeal for tax roll of
2010 (July 2009-June 2010). This claim is still pending. Applicant is appealing assessed value to be lowered by $2,099,540 (in
whole dollars). No assurance can be given of the outcome of the appeal.

™

®

©

(10)
(€5

(12)

Source: MuniServices, LLC

For the Fiscal Year 2009 Tax Roll, refer to the Unaudited Statistical Section, Table 7 “Principal
Property Tax Payers”, to the Fiscal Year 2009 CAFR.
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9. Labor Relations

General. The City of San Diego has five (5) labor organizations which represent classified
employees. They are the International Association of Firefighters Local 145 (IAFF Local 145), the
Police Officers Association (POA), the Municipal Employees Association (MEA), the American
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees Local 127 (AFSCME Local 127), and the
California Teamsters Local 911 (Local 911) who represent lifeguards. A sixth labor organization, the
Deputy City Attorneys Association (DCAA) represents unclassified deputy city attorneys.

As of March 12, 2010, AFSCME Local 127 represented approximately 1,808 employees; MEA
represented approximately 4,859 employees; POA represented approximately 1,854 employees; |AFF
Local 145 represented approximately 864 employees; DCAA represented approximately 136; and Local
911 represented approximately 285 employees.

Contracts for Fiscal Year 2010 and 2011. On April 14, 2009, the City Council unanimously
approved the terms of the labor agreements for Fiscal Years 2010 and 2011 for MEA, IAFF Local 145
and DCAA. Negotiations with the remaining two bargaining units, AFSCME Local 127 and POA, did
not end in agreement. The City Council imposed on both unions the terms and conditions of
employment contained in the Mayor’s last, best and final offer for Fiscal Year 2010. Pursuant to the
labor agreements for the bargaining units and the terms and conditions approved for AFSCME Local
127 and POA, all five bargaining units and the City’s unclassified and unrepresented employees will be
held to a general salary freeze and subject to a 6% reduction in overall compensation which has been
implemented through salary reductions, decreases in the City-paid allotment of the employee share for
employee health care, retirement and other employment benefits, fewer paid holidays and mandatory
furloughs. Each bargaining unit reached the 6% target through a different combination of these
measures. The compensation reductions also apply to management and unrepresented City employees,
including the Mayor, his staff, and some independent departments. Departments not under Mayoral
control including some City Council offices did not participate in some or all of the compensation
reductions.

The City is currently engaged in contract negotiations for Fiscal Year 2011 with the POA,
AFSCME Local 127, and Local 911. Negotiations are ongoing with a target date for completion being
April 15, 2010.
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10. Pension Plan and Other Post Employment Benefits

Pension Plan

The Table below sets forth the City’s portion of SDCERS historical funding progress for Fiscal Years
2005 through 2009.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2009
(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Valuation Date Valuation
(June 30) Assets AAL Funded Ratio UAAL
20050 @ $ 2,983,080 $ 4,436,017 67.25% $ 1,452,937
2006 3,981,932 4,982,700 79.92 1,000,768
20079 4,413,411 5,597,653 78.84 1,184,242
2008 4,660,346 5,963,550 78.15 1,303,204
2009 4,175,229 6,281,593 66.47 2,106,364

(1) Projected Unit Cost method used for determining actuarial accrued liability.

(2) For Fiscal Year 2005, the actuarial accrued liability, the UAAL and the funded ratio have been adjusted to reflect the impact of the
Corbett contingent settlement benefit. The actuarial valuation provided by the actuary for Fiscal Year 2005 does not include this
contingent benefit in the funded ratio. However, the valuations prepared by the actuary for Fiscal Years 2006 through Fiscal Year
2009 do include the impact of the Corbett contingent settlement benefit. See Note 12 to the CAFR for Fiscal Year 2009.

(3) Reflects revised actuarial methodologies. The actuarial accrued liability was calculated using the Entry Age Normal method
beginning in Fiscal Year 2007. Prior to Fiscal Year 2007, the Projected Unit Cost method was used.

Source: Fiscal Year 2005 — 2008: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego
Fiscal Year 2009: SDCERS June 30, 2009 Actuarial Valuation.

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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Pension Contribution

The Table below sets forth the City’s ARC and pension payments for Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011 as
well as the amounts related specifically to the General Fund.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO

PENSION CONTRIBUTION
Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011
(in millions)
General Fund
Fiscal Year Total City Pension
ending June 30 ARC® Pension Contribution © Contribution®
2008 $140.1 $166.6 $127.7
2009 165.7 163.6 133.8
2010 155.2 155.6 124.9
2011 231.7¢ 2332 180.1

(1) Includes core pension Annual Required Contribution (“ARC”) and Preservation of Benefits (“POB”) Plan ARC. See Note 12 in the
City’s Fiscal year 2009 CAFR for more information on ARC and POB. Per IRS guidelines, the City may not pre-fund the POB Plan.
Therefore, plan contributions may differ from the ARC in any given year. See footnote 2.

(2) Fiscal Years 2008 and 2009: Audited; Fiscal Year 2010: Budgeted; and Fiscal Year 2011: Projection. Fiscal Year 2008: Includes
$137.7 million core pension contribution per SDCERS June 30, 2006 Actuarial Valuation, $1 million POB Plan contribution, and
$27.9 million in additional voluntary contributions. Fiscal Year 2009: Includes $161.7 million core pension contribution per SDCERS
June 30, 2007 Actuarial Valuation, $1.2 million POB Plan contribution, and $700,000 in additional voluntary contributions. Fiscal
Year 2010: Includes $154.2 million core pension contribution per SDCERS June 30, 2008 Actuarial Valuation and a budgeted $1.4
million POB Plan contribution. Fiscal Year 2011: Includes a projected $231.7 million core pension contribution per SDCERS June
30, 2009 Actuarial Valuation and a projected $1.5 million POB Plan contribution.

(3) Fiscal Year 2009: Actual. Fiscal Year 2010: Budgeted. Fiscal Year 2011: Projected.

(4) The POB Plan ARC has not yet been determined for Fiscal Year 2011, and accordingly has not been included.

Source: Fiscal Years 2008 — 2009: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego;
Fiscal Years 2010 — 2011: Financial Management Department, City of San Diego.

Also refer to Note 12, “Pension Plans”, to the Fiscal Year 2009 CAFR.
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Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

The table below sets forth the retiree healthcare ARC and contributions for Fiscal Years 2008
through 2011.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
RETIREE HEALTH CONTRIBUTIONS
Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011

(in millions)
Total City
Fiscal Year Retiree Health General Fund Retiree
ending June 30 ARC Contribution® Health Contribution®®
2008 $91.6 $53.6 $32.5
2009 104.5 49.5 34.9
2010 113.4 57.1 39.7
2011 120.3 57.8 40.0

(1) Fiscal Years 2008 and 2009: Actual. Fiscal Year 2010: Budgeted. Fiscal Year 2011: Projected.
(2) Includes pay-as-you-go portion and contribution towards the CalPERS Employment Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT).

Source: Fiscal Years 2008 — 2009: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego;
Fiscal Years 2010 — 2011: Financial Management Department, City of San Diego

Also refer to Note 13, “Other Postemployment Benefits”, to the Fiscal Year 2009 CAFR.
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11. Public Liability Insurance

Estimated liabilities for public liability claims have been recorded in the Self Insurance Fund,
Sewer Utility Fund, and Water Utility Fund. The table below presents the liability expense of the City
for all three funds for the years presented, and the liability premium payments. Amounts charged to the
General Fund for claims and premiums vary from year to year based on a variety of factors including
distribution of claims among responsible funds.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
LIABILITY CLAIMS® AND PREMIUMS
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2005 through 2009

Liability Claims
Payments and Liability Premium
Fiscal Year Settlement Costs Payments
2005 $24,508,000 $2,928,104
2006 28,563,000 3,541,053
2007 31,832,000 5,725,972
2008 28,043,000 4,487,500
2009 25,588,000 5,491,130

@ The City’s portion of settlement and investigation expenses for third party public liability claims, and other litigation expenses.

Source: Information under tabular heading “Liability Claims Payments and Settlement costs” — Fiscal Year 2005 - Fiscal Year 2009:
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, Comptroller’s Office, City of San Diego
Information under tabular heading “Liability Premium Payments” - Risk Management Department, City of San Diego

Also refer to the Letter of Transmittal and Note 15, “Risk Management”, to the Fiscal Year 2009
CAFR.

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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12. INVESTMENT OF FUNDS (As of December 31, 2009)

Pool Liquidity and Other Characteristics

The City Pool (including both the “Liquidity” and the “Core” portfolios) is highly liquid. Based
on preliminary and unaudited month-end data as of December 31, 2009, approximately 13% of the pool
investments mature within 62 days, 16% within 92 days and 22% within 184 days, 34% within 1 year,
72% within 2 years, 99% within 3 years, and 100% within 5 years (on a cumulative basis). As of
December 31, 2009, the Pool had a weighted average maturity of 1.44 years (524 days) and its
weighted average yield was 1.143%. For purposes of calculating weighted average maturity, the City
Treasurer treats investments in the State-wide Local Agency Investment Fund (California State Pool) as
maturing within one day. The Liquidity portfolio had a duration of 0.40 years and the Core portfolio
had a duration of 1.85 years as of December 31, 2009. Duration is a measure of the price volatility of
the portfolio and reflects an estimate of the projected increase or decrease in the value of the portfolio
based upon a decrease or increase in interest rates. Accordingly, the Liquidity portfolio should decrease
in market value by 0.40% for every 1% increase in market interest rates while the Core portfolio should
decrease in market value by 1.85% for every 1% increase in market interest rates. The City Pool’s
composition is designed with a goal of having sufficient liquid funds available to meet disbursement
requirements. The composition and value of investments under management in the City Pool will vary
from time to time depending on cash flow needs of the City, maturity or sale of investments, purchase
of new securities, and fluctuations in interest rates.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO POOLED INVESTMENT FUND
at December 31, 2009
(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Investment Instrument Book Value Fair Value Percent of Total®®
U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes $926,952 $927,188 44.96%
Federal Agency Securities® 753,964 754,388 36.57
Medium Term Notes (Corporate)®® 194,391 195,636 9.43
Money Market Instruments®® 136,340 136,340 6.62
Local Agency Investment Fund 49,891 49,891 2.42
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $2,061,538 $2,063,443 100.00%

(1) Based on book value.

(2) Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”) securities and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(“Freddie Mac”) securities represent 20.24% and 27.25%, respectively, of total Federal Agency Securities, which is
approximately 7.40% and 9.97%, respectively, of the City Pool.

(3) These notes consist of both fixed and floating interest rate securities. The notes with floating interest rates are reset at
intervals ranging from one day to three months. 65.48% of these notes were issued under the Temporary Liquidity
Guarantee Program and are backed by the full faith and credit of the FDIC.

(4) These securities consist of commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, Certificate of Deposit Account Registry
Service certificate of deposit, term and overnight repurchase agreements, money market mutual funds, banker’s
acceptances, bank notes and/ or thrift notes.

Source: Office of the City Treasurer, City of San Diego.

Also Refer to Note 3, “Cash and Investments”, to the Fiscal Year 2009 CAFR.
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13. General Obligation and General Fund Lease Obligations

As of June 30, 2009, the City had $6,315,000 aggregate principal amount of long-term general
obligation bonded indebtedness outstanding and $537,290,000 aggregate principal amount of long-term
general fund lease obligations outstanding.

The table below provides a schedule, by years, of principal and interest payments required to be
made by the City or its oversight entities with respect to future obligations, as of June 30, 2009.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
GENERAL OBLIGATION AND GENERAL FUND LEASE OBLIGATIONS®®
As of June 30, 2009
(in thousands)

General General Total
Fiscal Year Obligation Fund Lease Principal and
Ending June 30 Bonds Obligations Interest Payable
2010 $ 2,328 $ 46,459 $ 48,787
2011 2,319 53,288 55,607
2012 2,314 49,728 52,042
2013 0 49,681 49,681
2014 0 49,634 49,634
Thereafter 0 596,516 596,516
Subtotal $ 6,961 $ 845,306 $ 852,267
Less Interest Portion 646 (308,016) (308,662)
Total Principal Portion $ 6,315 $537,290 $ 543,605

(1) Unaudited

(2) The table includes the $103 million Public Facilities Financing Authority of the City of San Diego, Lease Revenue Bonds, Series
2009A (Various Capital Improvement Projects) Bonds (“Series 2009A”). The projected interest due on these bonds is based on an
assumed interest rate of 5.19% (based on the Cost of Funds Index plus a spread of 3%, effective June 1, 2010) with the final maturity
of December 1, 2018. The Series 2009A is expected to be refunded through a long term public offering before June 1, 2010.

Source:  Debt Management Department, City of San Diego
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The following provides a summary list of outstanding general obligation bonds and General Fund lease
commitments as of June 30, 2009.

Principal

Outstanding®™
General Obligation Bonds (in thousands)
1991 — Public Safety Communications $ 6,315
Total Principal of General Obligation Bonds $ 6,315
General Fund Lease Commitments
Certificates of Participation
1996A — Balboa Park/Mission Bay Park Capital Improvements $ 6,685
1996B — Balboa Park/Mission Bay Park Capital Improvements Refunding 8,050
2003 — Balboa Park/Mission Bay Park Capital Improvements Refunding 8,655
Lease Revenue Bonds
1994 — City/MTDB Authority Refunding - Police CIP and Bayside Extension $ 2,770
1996 — San Diego Jack Murphy Stadium 56,275
1998 — Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority 168,065
2002 — Fire and Life Safety Facilities Project 22,280
2003 — City/MTDB Authority for Old Town Trolley Extension Refunding 12,120
2007 — Ballpark Project 149,390
2009A — Various Capital Improvement Projects 103,000
Total Principal of General Fund Lease Commitments $537,290

(1) Unaudited

Source:  Debt Management Department, City of San Diego

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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14.  Short-Term Borrowings

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
GENERAL FUND TAX AND REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTES
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2001 through 2010
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended Principal
June 30 Amount @
2001 $ 77,000
2002 $ 73,000
2003 $ 93,200
2004 $ 110,900
2005@ $ 114,000
2006 $ 145,000
2007 $ 142,000
2008@ $ 116,000
2009® $ 135,000
2010 $124,070 @

(1) Par amounts issued pursuant to Charter Section 92
(2) Private placements in Fiscal Years 2005-2009
(3) Third and final note matures on April 30, 2010

Source: Debt Management Department, City of San Diego

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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15. Future Minimum Rental Payments

CITY OF SAN DIEGO
FUTURE MINIMUM RENTAL PAYMENTS
GENERAL FUND OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS®Y
As of June 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Rent Payable

2010 8,852
2011 8,241
2012 8,321
2013 8,264
2014 5,877
2015 53
2016 49
2017 49
2018 49
2019 49
Thereafter® 245
Total $40,049

(1) Table describes commercial rent payable by the City of San Diego.
(2) Fiscal Years 2020-2024

Source: Real Estate Assets Department, City of San Diego
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16.  Statement of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

CITY OF SAN DIEGO

STATEMENT OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT

As of March 1, 2010

(unaudited)
2009-10 Assessed Valuation: $181,065,185,204
Redevelopment Incremental Valuation: 17,977,774,770
Adjusted Assessed Valuation: $163,087,410,434

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT:
Metropolitan Water District
Palomar Community College District
San Diego Community College District
Poway Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District Nos. 2002-1 and 2007-1
San Diego Unified School District
Sweetwater Union High School District
San Ysidro School District
Other School, High School and Community College Districts
Grossmont Healthcare District
Palomar Pomerado Health System
City of San Diego
City of San Diego Community Facilities District No. 1
City of San Diego Community Facilities District No. 2, Improvement Area Nos. 1, 3 and 4
City of San Diego Community Facilities District No. 3
City of San Diego Community Facilities District No. 4
City of San Diego 1915 Act Bonds
Del Mar Unified School District Community Facilities District No. 99-1 & 95-1
North City West School District Community Facilities District
Poway Unified School District Community Facilities Districts
San Dieguito Union High School District Community Facilities Districts
Sweetwater Union High School District Community Facilities Districts
Other Special District 1915 Act Bonds
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
San Diego County General Fund Obligations
San Diego County Pension Obligations
San Diego Superintendent of Schools Certificates of Participation
Palomar Community College District General Fund Obligations
Poway Unified School District Certificates of Participation
Sweetwater Union High School District Certificates of Participation
Chula Vista School District General Fund Obligations
San Ysidro School District Certificates of Participation
Other School, High School and Community College District Certificates of Participation
City of San Diego General Fund Obligations and MTDB Authority
Otay Municipal Water District Certificates of Participation
TOTAL GROSS DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT
Less: Otay Municipal Water District Certificates of Participation
TOTAL NET DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT

GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT

% Applicable Debt 3/1/10
9.011% $ 23,808,864
26.111 39,623,443
99.923 625,197,412
67.752 & 68.491 171,168,918
99.926 1,526,327,902
20.702 71,154,723
84.442 73,795,640
Various 58,407,187
8.251 7,065,090
32.014 133,697,929
100. 4,340,000
100. 37,130,000
100. 68,390,000
100. 19,195,000
100. 12,165,000
100. 24,745,520
100. 29,115,000
100. 90,692,921
99.609-100. 305,770,005
39.731-81.063 32,105,640
8.935-100. 23,222,679
Various 1,787,962
$3,378,906,835

46.840% $ 197,482,124
46.840 399,786,304
46.840 9,924,225
26.111 1,817,326
71.391 90,998,888
20.702 2,585,680
4,914 7,028,249
84.442 31,264,651
Various 2,194,775
100. 525,230,000
8.183 5,064,459
$1,273,376,681

5,064,459

$1,268,312,222
$4,652,283,516
$4,647,219,057

€]

(1) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-bonded capital lease
obligations. Qualified Zone Academy Bonds are included based on the principal amount due at maturity.

(table continued on next page)
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CITY OF SAN DIEGO
STATEMENT OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT
As of March 1, 2010
(unaudited)
(continued from previous page)

Ratios to 2009-10 Assessed Valuation:

Direct Debt ($4,340,000) ........cciurururremeieeeeeerirene sttt 0.002%
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt ...........ccocvverviivniereiiiinninininnenns 1.87%
Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation:
Combined Direct Debt ($529,570,000) (1) ....covrvivereriieierisieresisreiesesreesssreresesreresssseresens 0.32%
Gross Combined Total Debt ....2.85%
Net Combined Total DEDL..........coviiiiiiiii 2.85%
(1) City $ 4,340,000
City Authorities and Certificates of Participation 525,230,000

$529,570,000

STATE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF 6/30/09: $0

Source: California Municipal Statistics Inc.

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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17.

Other Material Information

The City is currently contemplating a master refunding, which, depending on market
conditions, would refund the Public Facilities Financing Authority of the City of San Diego,
Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A (Various Capital Improvement Projects), the 1996B
Balboa Park/Mission Bay Park Capital Improvements Refunding Bonds, and the 1996A San
Diego Jack Murphy Stadium Bonds.

Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank
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18. CONVENTION CENTER EXPANSION FINANCING AUTHORITY

(STATE: CALIFORNIA) Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A (City of San Diego,
California, as Lessee)

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER
Bookings ®
During each of the five fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, the Convention Center hosted the
following types of events, which were attended by the following estimated number of attendees:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 (Unaudited)

Type of Event 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Conventions with Trade Shows 35 53 50 53 54
Estimated Attendance 390,220 412,369 519,078 568,153 458,485
Conventions Only 3 2 1 2 2
Estimated Attendance 12,543 8,827 4968 10,413 7,962
Trade Shows only 4 5 5 5 5
Estimated Attendance 38,388 41,566 44,783 50,222 39,517
Incentive Meetings 13 11 11 7 10
Estimated Attendance 52,999 49,119 48,260 19,371 33,626
All Others @ 169 210 153 167 177
Estimated Attendance 365,908 438,829 366,617 348,067 322,879
Total Events 224 281 220 234 248

Total Estimated Attendance 860,058 950,710 983,706 996,226 862,469

(1) The San Diego Convention Center operates in a competitive market; other municipalities could build competing
facilities over time. The construction of a convention center by other local municipalities may have a negative
impact on future bookings at the San Diego Convention Center.

(2) Consumer shows, meetings and seminars, community events, local trade shows, and food and beverage events.

Source: San Diego Convention Center Corporation

DEFINITE BOOKINGS OF CONVENTIONS AND TRADE SHOWS, CONVENTIONS ONLY,
TRADE SHOWS ONLY, AND INCENTIVE MEETINGS
Fiscal Year Ending June 30

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
66 64 56 44 36

(1) The San Diego Convention Center is entitled to collect cancellation fees should any definite bookings cancel.

Source: San Diego Convention Center Corporation, unaudited
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BUDGETING AND FUNDING

CONVENTION CENTER
OPERATING RESULTS AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FIVE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30
(in thousands)

(audited)*
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Total Revenues $24,309  $29,1340  $33,874"  $34,874" $31,1210
Operating Expenses (24,903)  (26,066)  (27,526)  (29,240)  (29,194)
Inter-Entity Transfer

Expense® - - (643) - -
Phase I11 Expansion

Expenses® - - - - (2,087)
Depreciation Expense -- (2,272) (2,292) (2,164) (2,096)
Capital Expenditures ) © (2,334)® - - - -

Total Expenses and
Capital/Depr Expenditures ($27,237) ($28,338) ($30,461) ($31,404) ($33,377)

Net Excess/(Deficit) ($2,928) $796 $3,413 $3,470 ($2,256)

*All numbers are audited except for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2005.

@

O]

@)
4)
®)

(6)

As a result of the change in accounting methodology described in footnote (5) and due to changes in funding from the City as
defined in the Third Amended and Restated Management Agreement Between the City of San Diego and the San Diego
Convention Center Corporation (effective for fiscal year 2006), funding received from the City is included in Total Revenues.
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, June 30, 2007, and June 30, 2008, funding from the City included in Total Revenues
amounted to $4,339,198 for each year. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 funding amounted to $4,122,238.

Operating Expenses and Capital Expenditures are reported in a manner that reflects the method by which these expenditure
categories are reflected in the Corporation's Audited Financial Statements, which is different from the method used for the
Official Statement and previously published Continuing Disclosure Annual Reports (“Reports”). Specifically, in addition to
leasehold improvement capital expenditures (e.g., improvements that are attached to the building, such as the roof and walls),
non-leasehold capital expenditures (e.g., equipment, computers, and furniture) are included in Capital Expenditures instead of
in Operating Expenses as was the case for the Official Statement and the Reports, previous to the Annual Report ended June
30, 2002.

Includes transfer of restricted funds from the San Diego Convention Center Corporation to San Diego Theatres, Inc. (a
subsidiary of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation) for use in restoration projects at the San Diego Civic Theatre.
Includes expenses related to comprehensive due diligence work analyzing the feasibility of a major expansion of the
Convention Center. Amount includes non-refundable option to purchase interest in a ground lease for the Expansion site.
Beginning with fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the accounting methodology for the San Diego Convention Center
Corporation was adjusted from modified accrual to full accrual accounting. As a result, capital expenditures are not
recognized while depreciation expense (from capital items) is recognized. For the years ended June 30, 2006, June 30, 2007,
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009, funds used to pay for capital purchases and principal payments on debt associated with
capital projects amounted to $2,855,330, $3,206,652, $2,532,101, and $2,847,510, respectively.

Includes a Capital Expenditure item for a $1,000,000 payment to the San Diego Unified Port District relating to the Sails
Pavilion Enclosure Project loan. The payment ends in fiscal year 2011, at which time a final payment of $500,000 will be
made. Refer to footnote (5) for change in accounting methodology.

Source: San Diego Convention Center Corporation, unaudited

The San Diego Convention Center Corporation (the “Corporation”, the operating entity of the

San Diego Convention Center), has been offering discounts from its posted rental rates to maintain or
enhance bookings of its primary business (i.e., Conventions with Trade Shows, Conventions Only,
Trade Shows Only, and Incentive Meetings), in order to stay competitive with other major convention
facilities which, according to the staff of the Corporation, have also been obligated to offer discounts.
For example, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, rental revenue received reflected an approximate
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$3.1 million discount from the posted rates, and, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, it is expected
that such discounts will continue.

At the end of Fiscal Year 2005 a restated Management Agreement was executed between the
City and the Corporation that specified that funding from the City be used solely for marketing,
promotion and/or capital projects for the Convention Center in an amount sufficient to ensure that the
Corporation can perform its obligations under the Management Agreement.

In January 2009, the Mayor formed the Mayor's Citizen Task Force on the Convention Center
Project to evaluate and recommend steps to ensure the City’s ability to retain and enhance its current
market position in the convention and meeting industry. In September 2009, the Task force issued its
final report which included recommendations to finalize scope and cost of a proposed Convention
Center Expansion, identify revenue and financing necessary for the Expansion and to proceed with the
Expansion.

19.  PUBLIC FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO
(STATE: CALIFORINA)

Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1996A (San Diego Jack Murphy Stadium)

As described in the Official Statement published in 1996, the City had entered into agreements
with various major users of the Stadium facilities. Among these users was the Chargers Football
Company, LLC (“the Chargers”). At that time, the Chargers utilized the Stadium pursuant to the 1995
Partial Use and Occupancy Agreement for San Diego Jack Murphy Stadium (subsequently re-named
Qualcomm Stadium), as amended by the First Amendment to 1995 Partial Use and Occupancy
Agreement for San Diego Jack Murphy Stadium dated as of December 10, 1996. Since that time, the
agreement has been modified from time to time. Pursuant to the Ninth Supplement to the 1995
Agreement for the Partial Use and Occupancy of Qualcomm Stadium (“Ninth Supplement”), between
the Chargers and the City, dated May 16, 2006, the Chargers could not relocate prior to the end of the
2008 Regular Football Season. The Ninth Supplement does allow the Chargers the right to terminate
the agreement any time after the 2008 National Football League (“NFL”) season by tendering a fee
which is based on a sliding scale starting at $56,275,000 after February 1, 2009 and falling to
$3,490,000 after February 1, 2020. In order to terminate the agreement, the Chargers must provide
written notice to the City no earlier than February 1 and no later than May 1 of the calendar year in
which the Chargers seek to terminate the agreement. No such notice has been received as of April 7,
2010.

The Official Statement also described Padres L.P. as a major user of the Stadium. Since the time
the Official Statement was written, a new ballpark has been constructed in the East Village
neighborhood of downtown San Diego, and Padres L.P. is no longer a major tenant of the Stadium.
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Forward-Looking Statements

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009
(CAFR), including the Letter of Transmittal and the section regarding Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, contains forward-looking statements regarding the City’s business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,”
“intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates” and similar expressions or variations of such
words are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the exclusive means of

99 ¢ 99 ¢

identifying forward-looking statements in the CAFR. Additionally, statements concerning future
matters such as City budgets and the financial outlook for future years, the level of City services,
California state matters that may impact the City, revenue and expense levels and other
statements regarding matters that are not historical are also forward-looking statements.

Although forward-looking statements in the CAFR reflect the City’s good faith judgment, such
statements can only be based on facts and factors currently known by the City. Consequently,
forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties. The actual results
and outcomes may differ materially from the results and outcomes discussed in or anticipated by
the forward-looking statements. Readers are urged not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date of the CAFR. The City undertakes no
obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements in order to reflect any event or
circumstance that may arise after the date of the CAFR. Readers are urged to carefully review
and consider the various disclosures made in the CAFR which attempt to advise interested
parties of factors that may affect the business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects of the City.
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THE CIiTY oF SAN DIEGO

December 21, 2009

Citizens and Interested Parties,

The San Diego economy has been severely impacted by the ongoing recession and recent
economic data is mixed regarding the timing of any potential recovery. Federal stimulus
funds contributed to positive GDP growth nationally in the third quarter of calendar year
2009 and local leading economic indicators have increased in each of the past six months
showing some economic stabilization. However, State and local unemployment rates are at
twenty-five year highs and property foreclosures continue to adversely affect home values.
Lower consumer spending has significantly reduced economic activity in the City, resulting
in decreased government revenues. Continued revenue reductions will affect the ability of
the City to provide services to its citizens.

The City’s fiscal challenges have been exacerbated by the State’s ongoing budget crisis.
The State legislature suspended the requirements of Proposition 1A (2004) in an effort to
balance the State’s FY 2010 budget. Proposition 1A is intended to prevent local revenues
from being taken by the State; however, Proposition 1A can be suspended with the
declaration of a fiscal emergency by the Governor and a vote of two-thirds of the
Legislature. In fiscal year 2010, the State will borrow approximately $1.9 billion in property
tax revenue from local jurisdictions to help balance the State budget; the City’s share of this
is approximately $35.8 million. However, the City will recover this property tax revenue
during fiscal year 2010 through a securitization program established by the California
Statewide Communities Development Authority. The State also passed Assembly Bill (AB)
26 4x, which requires redevelopment agencies statewide to pay a total of $2.05 billion of
their property tax revenues to the State over the next two years. The impact to the City’'s
Redevelopment Agency (RDA) will be approximately $56 million in fiscal year 2010 and $11
million in fiscal year 2011. The State continues to struggle to balance its budget resulting in
ongoing uncertainty with respect to the City’s expected revenues.

Economic Development Activities

The City addressed the economic downturn in fiscal year 2009 by increasing community
investment, promoting business growth and retention, and by competing successfully for
federal stimulus funds. The City division of Economic Growth Services (EGS) worked to
create and retain jobs and taxable investment in the City of San Diego. EGS consists of two
focused work units: the Business Expansion, Attraction, and Retention Team and the
Government Incentives Team. These two teams work directly with businesses, business
organizations, and City departments to create a business-friendly environment that
promotes a stable economy. Economic growth, energy independence, revenue
enhancement, and community revitalization are accomplished by attracting new companies,
retaining and/or expanding existing companies, making San Diego competitive in emerging
markets, and revitalizing older business communities.
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Due to the economic downturn, Economic Growth Services has placed a strong emphasis on
its business retention mission. In fiscal year 2009 EGS developed and executed successful
business retention efforts for Sony Electronics, Cricket Corporation, Circle Foods, Lockheed
Martin, Eli Lilly, and CamelBak. These efforts resulted in the creation or retention of
approximately 2,900 San Diego based jobs. In the current fiscal year, EGS worked with
Alliant Techsystems, Inc to retain or create 200 San Diego based jobs. The capital
investments made by the companies EGS assisted in fiscal year 2009 and fiscal year 2010
represent a cumulative investment of more than $368 million of construction and renovation
activity for our local economy.

The “Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service” (CDARS) is a deposit-placement
service designed to allow FDIC-insured depository institutions to accept deposits of more
than $100,000 (currently $250,000) and obtain full coverage for the depositor by spreading
the funds among as many separate FDIC insured institutions as necessary so that no
institution holds more than $250,000 (principal plus interest) for each depositor. To
support local reinvestment, the City increased its CDARS investment from $5 million to $15
million in fiscal year 2009. The City plans to increase the allowable investment in the CDARS
program to approximately $40 million in fiscal year 2010. The authorized CDARS
investment program allows the City to invest millions of dollars into fully insured FDIC non-
negotiable certificates of deposit. The initial deposit is split among small community banks
throughout the country so that any single Certificate of Deposit at a financial institution
does not exceed the $250,000 FDIC insurance limit. The banks participating in the CDARS
network send an equal amount of funds back to local San Diego banks to ensure that they
retain funds equal to the City's initial deposit for reinvestment in the local community. The
City’s investment in the CDARS program assures that the full amount deposited at local
banks stays in San Diego for reinvestment in the community.

According to the stimulus tracking website Recovery.org, California received more American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) dollars than any other state and the San Diego
region received the second largest total of stimulus dollars of any region in California
(trailing Los Angeles). As of November 19, 2009, the San Diego region received 201
projects totaling over $2.1 billion. The City of San Diego can expect to see at least $340
million in stimulus funding. Of this amount, approximately $290 million is for Federal
projects and will not come directly through the City; the remaining $50 million is expected
to come to the City over the next six months. Projects including the modernization of Otay
Mesa’s Port of Entry and the San Ysidro border expansion project will alleviate congestion
and improve the productivity and efficiency of US/Mexico border relations. This money will
come either directly to the City in the form of block grants and competitive awards ($49
million) or to our partner agencies in which the City participates, such as the San Diego
Association of Governments and the San Diego Workforce Partnership ($126 million), or to
federal agencies pursuing major construction projects within the City of San Diego ($164
million not including military projects). These ARRA funds will be used on transportation,
housing, public safety and energy projects that will not only create jobs but will provide long
term benefits for the City and the region.

Fiscal Challenges

The City of San Diego has faced significant financial challenges over the last several years
and has made a determined effort to improve its overall financial condition and the quality
of its financial statements, internal controls, and disclosure controls and procedures. A few
of the City’s achievements include (1) the release of audited financial statements for fiscal
years 2003-2008 in a two year period; (2) the implementation of an annual five-year
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financial outlook as a prudent planning tool; (3) the strengthening of the City’s General
Fund reserves; (4) fully funding the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) to the City’'s
pension system since fiscal year 2006; (5) new pension plans for police and for non-public
safety employees hired on or after July 1, 2009; (6) participation in a California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CALPERs) trust for pre-funding of post-employment
healthcare benefits for retired City employees; (7) rating upgrades from the national rating
agencies, including, in the case of one agency, the reinstatement of the City’s credit rating;
and (8) re-entering the public bond market in 2009 and issuing $1.6 billion in debt (new
money and refunding) after a five year absence.

The City issued the Fiscal Year 2010 First Quarter Budget Monitoring Report on November
17, 2009, which presented a review of actual expenditures and receipts through September
2009 and projects annual expenditures and revenues for the General Fund through year
end. Based on this analysis, the City expects a shortfall of approximately $7.5 million in
fiscal year 2010, primarily as a result of declining sales tax and Transient Occupancy Tax
(TOT) revenues. The decline in major revenues is partially offset by conservative spending
and a hiring freeze that has been in effect since August 2009.

The Five Year Financial Outlook (Outlook) issued on October 1, 2009, identified a projected
deficit for fiscal year 2011 of $179 million. The sensitivity analysis in the Outlook estimates
a deficit range of $168 to $200 million, primarily resulting from the possible fluctuation of
three major revenues: property tax; sales tax; and TOT. On November 24, the Mayor
presented a proposed 18 month budget for the remainder of fiscal year 2010 and fiscal year
2011 to remediate the projected fiscal year 2011 deficit of $179 million. On December 14,
2009 the City Council adopted the fiscal year 2010 budget revisions and the fiscal year 2011
proposed budget. The fiscal year 2011 budget framework approved by the City Council
includes a combination of transfers, new revenue, and annual expenditure reductions that
will impact services to City residents. Further action, including labor negotiations and
additional City Council approval, will be necessary to implement all recommended
adjustments. If the budget is implemented on January 1, 2010 as recommended, savings of
approximately $24 million in fiscal year 2010 will be set aside to assist in balancing the
fiscal year 2011 budget.

The City publicly issued a $125 million Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRAN) on July
1, 2009 and does not currently foresee the need to issue additional notes to meet any
General Fund liquidity needs for the remainder of fiscal year 2010. The City treasury holds
approximately $2 billion that is invested primarily in US Treasuries and agencies, and
consistent with the City’s investment policy, has sufficient liquidity to meet all currently
foreseeable cash demands. The General Fund reserves are approximately $79 million as of
the issuance of this report, which includes $55 million set aside in an Emergency Reserve
Fund that can be accessed by a two-thirds vote of City Council.

Readers of these financial statements should pay particular attention to Notes 12, 13, 18,
and 22, concerning Pension Plans, Other Post Employment Benefits, Contingencies, and
Subsequent Events, respectively. The notes, along with the other financial and operational
data included in the City’'s CAFR, must be read in their entirety to obtain a complete
understanding of the City’s financial position as of June 30, 2009.

Our Underlying Fundamentals

The City has a diversified economy, with the principal employers being government, high-
tech industries, particularly biotech and telecommunications, and the tourism industry.
The City’s economic base is also anchored by higher education and major scientific research

13



City oF SaN DiEGco ComPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

institutions, including the University of California, San Diego, San Diego State University,
Scripps Research Institute, the Salk Institute for Biological Studies, and the San Diego
Supercomputer Center.

Like all regions around the country, San
Diego County’s economy has been

Employment Development Department-
ploy +e 0P P impacted by the economic recession. In

Unemployment Rates

San Diego County the past three years unemployment has
1.0 more than doubled, rising from an average
100 1 in 2006 of 4.0% to 10.5% as of October
:g 2009. The recession has slowed both
70 | residential and commercial development
60 - within our region. This combined with a
50 | contraction in business payrolls and
40 1 reduced travel spending has driven the
30 1 unemployment rate to historic levels.
20 1
1.0 1
0.0

[ A C S A U

The City’s property tax revenue has grown
over the last five years, although at a City of San Diego

decreasing rate. In fiscal year 2009 General Fund - Property Tax Revenue
General Fund property tax revenues were
$398.7 million compared to $384.3 million

in fiscal year 2008, representing a 3.8% $400 1
growth. However, due to the continued
decline in home prices, the budgeted fiscal 8300 1
year 2010 property tax revenue in the g
General Fund was projected to decline = 207
4.0% over fiscal year 2009 actuals.
Subsequently, based on updated $100 1
information from the County, the City
revised its estimate for property tax $0 -
revenue for fiscal year 2010 showing a 2005 2006 ,2007 2008 2009
smaller decrease of 1.5% over the fiscal Fiscal Year
year 2009 actual property tax revenue.
City of San Diego The impact of I_ower business and
General Fund - Sales Tax Revenue consumer spending has had a
significant effect on sales tax revenues.
In fiscal year 2009, actual General Fund
$400 sales tax revenues (including safety
sales tax) were $212.9 million, a 9.6%
$300 decline from 2008 sales tax revenues of
o $235.6 million. For fiscal year 2010,
2 6200 the City budgeted a decline of 1.3% in
= sales tax revenues. However, the first
$100 - quarter actual sales tax receipts were
significantly = below the budgeted
$0 - amount. The City’s adjusted projection

for fiscal year 2010 is now $191.2

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 -
million, or 10.2% lower than actual

Fiscal Year
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revenue received for fiscal year 2009.

San Diego remains a top tourist
destination due to the region’s natural
attractions; however, the tourism
industry has not escaped the impact of $150
the deteriorating economy. The City's
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) rate is
currently 10.5% and is allocated
according to the Municipal Code. As
such, the General Fund receives 52% of
these revenues to be used for general
governmental purposes, and the TOT
fund receives the remaining 48% for the
purpose of promoting the City as a
tourism destination. The General Fund 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
portion of TOT represents approximately Fiscal Year

7% of the revenue from the fiscal year 2010 General Fund Adopted Budget. In fiscal year
2009, San Diego experienced an 11.7% decrease in TOT revenue from fiscal year 2008. For
fiscal year 2010, the City budgeted an increase of 2.9% in TOT tax over 2009 actuals.
Based on receipts from the first three months of fiscal year 2010, the City adjusted its
estimate for TOT tax receipts to $127.6 million which reflects a 9.3% decline from fiscal
year 2009 actuals.

City of San Diego
Total Transient Occupancy Tax Revenue

$125
$100

Millions

©“ B
N o 0N
o o o

R
o

Financial Health

The City’s total government-wide
revenues, which are generated through a
combination of governmental and
business-type activities, have remained
approximately the same over the prior

three years, improving by 1%. While
property tax revenues and business-type

charges for services revenue for water and
wastewater services have grown during

this period, sales tax and TOT have
declined. For fiscal year 2010, property tax Business-All
revenue is projected to decline by 1.5%. Orner
Other major revenue sources are also
trending flat to declining as well. Total

government-wide revenues for fiscal year Business-
2009 were $2.7 billion; governmental e
activities were $1.8 billion and business-

type activities were $.9 billion, and are

illustrated in the chart to the right.

Total Government-Wide Revenues

Other Local
Taxes
6%
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Total Government-Wide Expenses Over the last three years, the City’s total
government-wide expenses have increased
approximately 4%. These expenses
supported all public services and the
significant fiscal obligations of the City,
including funding of the City’s pension
system, post-employment healthcare
benefits, and capital improvements. Total
expenses for fiscal year 2009 were $2.5
billion. Governmental activities were $1.7
billion, of which 38% was spent on public
safety for police, fire, and life safety services.
Business-type activities were $.8 billion, of
which 85% of these expenses were for water
and wastewater expenses.

LT Debt

Interest
3% All Other
11%

Water Utility
14%

The City’s unfunded pension Pension Funding Progress (Thousands)
liability remains a significant

obligation of the City. The Actuarial Actuarial Funded
City has aggressively | Valuation Date | Value of Assets UAAL Ratio
confronted this deficit, fully 6/30/2005 $ 2,983,080 $ 1,452,937 67.3%

funding the City’s Annual

o,
Required Contribution (ARC) 6/30/2006 3,981,932 1,000,768 79.9%
and has made significant 6/30/2008 4,660,346 1,303,204 78.2%

additional payments in

excess of the ARC into the pension fund in certain years. The San Diego City Employees’
Retirement System (SDCERS) is the administrator of the City’s employee pension funds. On
an annual basis, the pension fund portfolio and future pension obligations are evaluated by
an independent actuary to determine the full pension liability. The June 30, 2008 valuation
calculated the unfunded pension liability to be approximately $1.303 billion. The June 30,
2009 actuarial report is not complete as of the issuance of this report.

In fiscal year 2009, the global financial markets experienced significant declines. The
effects of the market declines have been wide ranging and impact even the most diversified
investment portfolios. The SDCERS investment portfolio is no exception. SDCERS employs a
long-term investment strategy. The City’s ARC is determined using an asset smoothing
methodology which dampens the volatility of the market value of assets which occurs from
fluctuations in market conditions. The ARC payment for fiscal year 2011 has not been
determined by the SDCERS actuary as of the issuance of this report; however, it has been
estimated by the SDCERS actuary, presented to the Board on July 17, 2009 and September
18, 2009, to be approximately $224 million. This is an increase of $70 million, or 45%,
over the ARC payment of $154 million the City is obligated to fund in fiscal year 2010. Any
significant increase in the fiscal year 2011 ARC payment will require the City to reduce
operating expenses which will affect services and programs.

In fiscal year 2008,

Retiree Healthcare Liabilities (Thousands)

(ngavne(jrgl?;:n?éard péica(i:;?e%?c Actuarial Actuarial Funded

45 (“GASB 45”) went into |Valuation Date | Value of Assets UAAL Ratio

effect requiring all municipal 6/30/2008 $ 29,637 $ 1,206,070 2.4%
6/30/2009 41,497 1,317,880 3.1%
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governments to report on Other Post Employment Benefits (retiree healthcare costs) in a
manner similar to reporting on pension benefits. The City’s actuarial valuation for retiree
healthcare costs estimated an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $1.318 billion
as of June 30, 2009. The City is participating in a trust administered by CalPERS to fund this
long-term liability and, to date, has contributed $54 million to the CalPERS trust. The fair
value of these assets as of June 30, 2009 was $41.5 million. The City is not currently fully
funding the ARC for retiree healthcare, which is $120.3 million for fiscal year 2011. The
amount budgeted for fiscal year 2010 is $57.1 million, of which $32.1 million will fund the
pay-go portion and $25 million is expected to be transferred to the CalPERS trust by fiscal
year end.

Governmental Funds (Tax Supported Operations)

The City’s General Fund finished fiscal year 2009 with unrestricted cash and investments of
approximately $87 million. As a fiscal precaution against natural disasters or unforeseen
events, the City maintains an emergency reserve fund that can only be accessed for
qualifying emergencies as declared by the Mayor and/or City Council and approved by at
least a 2/3 vote of the City Council. The General Fund Reserve Policy set a funding goal of
7.0% of General Fund revenue by the end of fiscal year 2009. The General Fund reserve
was actually 7.7% of General Fund revenue at June 30, 2009, resulting in a total reserve
balance of $78.3 million. This balance is reported within the General Fund Balance Sheet as
Undesignated Fund Balance. The reserves are currently cash funded within the City
Treasury’s pooled cash portfolio. The goal is to establish General Fund reserves at 8% of
revenues by fiscal year 2012.

The Fiscal year 2010 Budget adopted in June 2009 reflected a reduction of expense growth
by reducing program expenditures and imposing an across the board 6% reduction in
compensation for all City employees. The City also was successful in redesigning the
pension benefit package for most employees hired after July 1, 2009. Due to a projected
decline in the City’s major revenues, management addressed the City’s projected budgetary
imbalance by proposing, and City Council then adopting, a Fiscal year 2010 Budget that
reduced spending on current services while also attempting to mitigate service level
reductions. Council adopted a Fiscal year 2010 Budget in June 2009 that balanced
estimated revenues to expenditures.

During fiscal year 2009, total long-term liabilities of the City’s governmental activities
increased by $198 million. This was primarily the result of the capital improvement 2009A
lease revenue bond issue for $103 million for various capital improvement projects and an
increase to the Net Other-Postemployment Benefits Obligation of $45 million. Overall, our
annual interest costs for governmental activities were approximately $84 million in fiscal
year 2009, which represents approximately 5% of our total governmental activities
expenses.

The City’s capital assets are essential to providing services to its residents and maintaining
the quality of its environment. During fiscal year 2009, total capital assets for governmental
activities increased by $120 million. This was funded by a combination of developer
contributions, grant monies, and city-funded capital improvement programs.

The City’s capital improvement backlog is estimated to be approximately $800 to $900
million according to the most recent Five Year Financial Outlook. This amount is the most
recent estimate and includes the cost of needed repairs to City facilities, streets and storm
drains but does not include alleys, sidewalks or soft costs. The City is in the process of
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assessing and updating its cost estimate for its capital improvement backlog. These costs
have been deferred because the City has not had the necessary funding resources. As
mentioned above, the City issued $103 million in bonds to fund deferred projects during
fiscal year 2009. The bond proceeds will be used to fund deferred capital improvement
projects within the City.

The City’s Public Liability Fund,
which accounts for governmental
fund-related claims, has a deficit
of approximately $49 million as of

City of San Diego
Total Public Liability Claims Cash Payments

35 1

June 30, 2009. This deficit

includes an accrued liability for 30 1

actuarially calculated claims costs, g 25

incurred but not reported claims, = 20 1

and allocated and unallocated 1

losses of approximately $59 15

million, offset with the cash 10 7

reserves collected in the fund. 5 1

This fund has seen significantly 0 -

higher claims since fiscal year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

2005, largely as a result of the
legal claims and investigations
stemming from the pension fund
underpayment and related financial disclosure issues; however, most of these unusual costs
were paid through fiscal year 2007 and fiscal year 2008. The Workers’ Compensation Fund,
which accounts for both governmental and business-type claims, has a deficit of $114
million as of June 30, 2009. This deficit includes an accrued liability for actuarially calculated
liabilities for open and unreported claims, as well as a provision for the allocated loss
adjustment expense totaling approximately $148 million, offset with the cash reserves
collected in the fund. The total liability for workers compensation has declined since fiscal
year 2007 due to a downward trend in the number of claims and the effect of State
legislation regarding workers compensation reform enacted in 2004. Per the City Reserve
Policy, the City has budgeted funds annually to establish cash reserves to reach the goal of
50% of the estimated outstanding liabilities in each fund. While the City is committed to
funding reserves in the Worker’'s Compensation and Public Liability funds, and has included
funding for these reserves in the fiscal year 2010 budget, the goal of funding 50% of
outstanding liabilities in both funds by 2014 is being reassessed given the economic
downturn and continued decline in General Fund revenues.

Fiscal Year
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Governmental Activities Key Indicators
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Business-Type Activities

The majority of the City’s business-type activities are related to utilities that provide water
and wastewater services. The Water and Metropolitan Wastewater Departments have been
consolidated into a single Public Utilities Department and continue to serve several regional
agencies outside of the City’s boundaries. The utilities operations are mainly supported by
fees charged to customers. The Independent Rate Oversight Committee (an independent
committee of stakeholders) monitors utility rates and expenditures on behalf of the
ratepayers.

The City’s Water Utility Fund issued $485 million of Water Revenue and Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2009A and 2009B during fiscal year 2009 to prepay outstanding principal of
$207 million of Subordinated Water Revenue Notes, Series 2007A and 2008B; refund $94
million of Certificates of Undivided Interest, Series 1998 monies; and to finance capital
improvements on the water system. The publicly offered Water 2009A and 2009B Revenue
Refunding Bonds are secured by and payable solely from net system revenues of the Water
Utility Fund. The City’'s Wastewater Utility Fund issued $1.089 billion of Senior Sewer
Revenue Bonds to finance capital improvements to the wastewater system; fully refund
$224 million in wastewater revenue notes; and to refund approximately $683 million in
wastewater revenue bonds. The net change in these notes and bonds payable during fiscal
year 2009 is the primary reason the business-type long term liabilities increased $344
million over fiscal year 2008.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the City’s business-type activities closed with restricted
and unrestricted cash and investment balances totaling $1.2 billion, an increase over fiscal
year 2008 of approximately $319 million as a result of the debt issues discussed above.

While the City’s capital assets for business-type activities have continued to increase in
value, deferred maintenance remains an ongoing challenge. The City maintains a network
of over 3,000 miles of water pipes and over 3,000 miles of sewer and waste water lines.

Compliance with environmental regulations generally requires infrastructure construction,
including the replacement of water distribution systems, treatment plant upgrades, the
replacement of wastewater collection systems, and improving sewage treatment capacity.
The City has agreed with various state and federal regulators to build significant
infrastructure upgrades. In June 2009, the City received tentative approval of a third five-
year waiver permit from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the state Regional
Water Quality Control Board to continue operating the Point Loma Wastewater Treatment
Plant at advanced primary treatment level. The City is still working with the California
Coastal Commission to receive final wording on a consistency determination in support of
this EPA decision. The resolution is anticipated in early 2010.

The City is also facing challenges to the future of its water supplies. A persistent regional
drought and judicial decisions regarding management of the State Water Project has put
significant pressure on San Diego’s regional water supplies. The City of San Diego imports
as much as 90% of its water supply. The reliability of that supply has been reduced because
of court decisions, weather conditions, the diminishing availability of stored water, and
dwindling supplies of new water. The City continues to work with its water wholesalers (the
San Diego County Water Authority and the Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California) to address these supply issues but currently operates under a mandatory water
conservation target to achieve an 8% reduction in overall use. The City’s performance from
June through September has averaged a monthly reduction of over 12%. The availability of
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water has legal implications and could potentially affect City Council findings regarding state
mandated water supply assessments for future development. These assessments must
demonstrate the long-term availability of water for large projects before those projects can
be approved by local jurisdictions. At this time, it is unclear what effect limitations to water
supplies would have on the City’s economy and its revenues as the most recent project
assessments have all been able to find potable water offsets through the increased use of
reclaimed water. The Mayor also proposed and the City Council approved in October 2009 a
revised Landscape Ordinance in advance of the state’s requirement to do so by January
2010. The City is also moving forward with the California Department of Public Health to
undertake a demonstration project intended to verify that highly treated municipal
wastewater can be placed in a drinking water reservoir.

Best Practice Operating Improvements

The City took a major leap forward on July 1, 2009 when it went live with its new SAP
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) financial system. After two years of planning, the City
successfully began the transition to an integrated financial system which allowed us to
eliminate over a dozen legacy software applications. Throughout fiscal year 2010, core
functionality modules will be implemented, eliminating even more costly legacy software
applications and hardware. The addition of the ERP system and a well trained workforce are
expected to significantly improve the City’s financial operations and reporting capabilities.

Internal controls over financial operations and reporting continue to be a focus issue for the
City. As part of the ERP system, the City has invested in an integrated internal controls
module called Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC). GRC, coupled with new process
and procedure documents, are expected to improve our internal control environment. In
addition, the City has established a comprehensive plan and has the proper staffing in place
to complete the remediation of weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting
within 14 months.

The Five Year Financial Outlook

In October 2009, the City released an updated Five-Year Financial Outlook (the Outlook) for
fiscal years 2011 through 2015. This document is an examination of the City’s long range
fiscal condition and financial challenges. The City updates the Outlook periodically to
account for changed circumstances.

The City’s General Fund was the primary focus of the 2011-2015 Outlook. Approximately
68% of the City’s major revenues consist of four revenue sources: property tax, sales tax,
TOT, and franchise fees. Nearly 70% of the City’s General Fund expenditures are personnel
expenses. Negative economic factors have resulted in a downward revision to revenue
projections for the fiscal year 2010 annual budget, which served as a base for the Outlook.
The Outlook discussed risks and opportunities that affect fiscal decisions and the City’'s
ability to accomplish its strategic financial goals over the next five-year period. These goals
include:

e Meet contractual obligations and fund mandated programs

e  Contribute the full payment of the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for the
City’s pension system

) Maintain or enhance General Fund and other reserves according to the City’s
Reserve Policy

) Preserve City services to the fullest extent possible
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Five Year Outlook for Fiscal Years 2011 - 2015

Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast

GENERAL FUND FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
Projected Revenues
Property Tax $ 3964 $ 4045 $ 4167 $ 4334 $ 4507
Sales Tax 182.7 192.7 200.2 208.1 218.8
Transit Occupancy Tax 71.9 74.1 76.7 79.7 82.9
Franchise Fees 75.0 76.7 78.5 80.3 82.2
Other Revenues 335.6 346.1 353.3 355.3 362.0

1,061.6 1,094.1 1,125.4 1,156.8 1,196.6

Projected Expenses

Salary, Wages & Benefits 611.8 620.9 627.2 636.2 622.7
Operating Expenses 351.5 363.1 366.0 382.5 390.6
Pension Expense 217.8 206.5 225.2 2425 258.7
Retiree Healthcare Expense 43.2 46.8 50.4 54.2 57.8
General Fund Reserves 4.2 7.9 2.5 2.5 3.2
Liability Funding 12.2 7.8 10.1 4.8 -

| 1,2407| 1,253.0] 1,281.4| 1,3227] 1,333.0

|General Fund Projected Shortfall |$ (179.1)[$ (158.9)| $ (156.0)| $ (165.9) $ (136.4)|

The impact of continued declines in major revenue sources and increased costs for pension
funding are the leading factors in the fiscal year 2011 forecasted budget deficit of $179
million.

Because of the severity of the budget shortfall, the Mayor has indicated that cuts to services
and programs will be inevitable in order for the City to maintain a balanced budget. Within
the City, this will mean a workforce reduction combined with expenditure savings from
reduced or eliminated programs and services. The Mayor’s budget plan for fiscal year 2011
does not include contributions to fund reserves; however, the plan proposes that reserves
will not be spent and will be maintained at current levels.

Looking Forward

These are difficult economic times, and the City has set challenging goals for its future. The
City believes these goals are achievable with continued fiscal discipline and greater
government efficiency. In some revenue categories, San Diego has relatively low taxes and
fees compared to most other large municipalities in the United States. San Diego enjoys an
ideal location with agreeable weather year round. The diversity of industry, education and
tourism well positions the City for an early economic rebound when the economy begins its
eventual recovery.

Out of these challenging times, San Diego is restructuring its operations, services and
programs so that the City will emerge with a sound, fundamentally sustainable municipal
business model. We have addressed the issues that have created prior difficulties for this
City, and we are structuring ourselves for long-term solvency and flexibility. We will
continue to live within our means and balance our annual budgets.
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Purpose, Background, and Scope of this Report

San Diego City Charter § 111 requires the City to submit an annual report, including a
Statement of Net Assets, and requires that all accounts of the City be audited by an
independent auditor. Pursuant to this requirement, the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report ("CAFR") of the City of San Diego (“City”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is
hereby submitted. The audit firm of Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP has issued an unqualified
opinion on the City of San Diego’s financial statements. The independent auditor’s report is
located at the front of the financial section of this report.

The CAFR has been prepared in conformance with the principles and standards for reporting
as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for
both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the management of the City and its related agencies.
The City’s objective is to provide you with reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that
the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. Additionally, the City
continues to construct and improve a comprehensive internal control framework in order to
ensure acceptable management of taxpayer funds.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data as presented, is accurate in all material
respects; it is presented in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and
results of operations of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining funds
of the City and its related agencies; and all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the City's, as well as its related agencies’, financial activities have
been included.

A narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the financial statements can be found in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it. The CAFR is organized into three sections:

e The introductory section includes information about the organizational structure of the
City, the City’s economy, and selected other financial information.

e The financial section is prepared in accordance with governmental accounting
standards. It includes the MD&A (unaudited), the independent auditor’'s report, the
audited basic financial statements, notes to the basic financial statements, required
supplementary information (unaudited), and supplementary information (unaudited).

e The statistical section contains historical statistical data on the City’s financial data and

debt statistics, as well as miscellaneous physical, demographic, economic, and social
data of the City. This section of the CAFR is unaudited.
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Profile of the City of San Diego

The City of San Diego was incorporated in 1850. The City comprises 342 square miles and,
as of January 1, 2009, the California Department of Finance estimates the population to be
1,353,993. The City, with approximately 10,800 employees, provides a full range of
governmental services including police and fire protection, sanitation and health services,
the construction and maintenance of streets and infrastructure, recreational activities and
cultural events, and the maintenance and operation of the water and sewer utilities.

Governing Structure City of San Diego

The City operates under and is governed by Full Time and Part Time Employees
the laws of the State of California and its own
Charter, as periodically amended since its 11,800 7
adoption by the electorate in 1931. The City 11,600 1
is currently operating under a Strong-Mayor mgg
form of government. The departure, on an 11,000 4
interim trial basis, from the City’s previous 10,800
Council-Manager form of government was 10,600
approved by a vote of the public and became 18‘2‘28
effective January 1, 2006. The Mayor is 10,000 4
elected at large to serve a four-year term. 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Fiscal Year
City of San Diego Council Under the Strong-Mayor form of government, the Mayor is
District Map the Chief Executive Officer of the City and has direct

oversight over all City functions and services except for the
City Council, Personnel, City Clerk, Independent Budget
Analyst (IBA), City Attorney, and City Auditor
departments. Under this form of government, the City
Council is composed of eight members and is presided over
by the Council President, who is selected by a majority
vote of the City Council. The Mayor presides over City
Council in closed session meetings of the Council. The
Council retains its legislative authority; however, all City
Council resolutions and ordinances are subject to a veto of
the Mayor except for certain ordinances including
emergency declarations and the City’s annual Salary and
Appropriations Ordinances. The City Council may override
a Mayoral veto with five votes. The City Attorney, who is
elected for a four-year term, serves as the chief legal
advisor of and attorney for the City and all departments.

During the County’s primary election held on June 3, 2008,
voters approved Proposition B which requires City Council
to place a measure on the June 2010 ballot to allow voters
to decide whether the Strong-Mayor form of government
should become permanent effective January 1, 2011. Additionally, Proposition B provides
for the public to decide whether the number of City Council districts should increase from
eight to nine, and therefore, a corresponding increase of City Council votes required to
override the Mayor’s veto from five to six. Additionally, voters approved Proposition C,
which separated the City Auditor’s Office from the Comptroller's Office and made the Office
of the IBA permanent. Under this amendment, the City Auditor serves a ten-year term and
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is supervised by an Audit Committee consisting of two Councilmembers and three members
of the public with auditing expertise, who are appointed by the City Council. This
amendment also provides that the Mayor will appoint, with City Council confirmation, the
Chief Financial Officer. In addition, the Mayor’s appointment of the City Treasurer no longer
requires City Council confirmation.
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Current Elected Officials
(As of the issuance of this report)

District 5
Councilmember Carl DeMaio

¢ W District 6
& Councilmember Donna Frye
District 7
=" Councilmember Marti Emerald
5 B

District 1
Councilmember Sherri Lightner

District 2

Council President Pro Tem
Kevin Faulconer &

District 3

Councilmember Todd Gloria

| District 8
| Council President Ben Hueso

District 4
Councilmember Tony Young

City Attorney
Jan Goldsmith

Other City Officials
Jay M. Goldstone, Chief Operating Officer

Mary Lewis, Chief Financial Officer
Kenton C. Whitfield, City Comptroller
Gail R. Granewich, City Treasurer
Elizabeth Maland, City Clerk
Andrea Tevlin, Independent Budget Analyst
Eduardo Luna, City Auditor
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City of San Diego Organization Chart
(As of the issuance of this Report)

Citizens of San Diego City Council City Clerk
Civil Service Commission Commission for Arts and
Culture
City Attorey Independent Budget Analyst
Community & Legislati Mayor/CEQ
Personnel Senvices 1 Jerry Sanders
Economic Growth Services
Assistant Chief Operating Officer
Audit Committee Special Events

—| Human Resources Citywide Training

City Auditor * Disability Services

Human Relations
Labor Relations

Chief Financial Officer

Public Utilities Public Works

Jim Barrett David Jarrell

Engineering & Capital
Water Projects
Environmental Services
Debt Management Homeland Security Family Justice Center

Mary Lewis

City Comptrler City Planning & Community Library
Investments

City Treasurer Development Services | Park & Recreation |

Financial Management General Services

Purchasing & Contracts

Real Estate Assets

Risk Management Storm Water

* Proposition C, passed in June 2008, provides that the City Auditor shall report to and be accountable to the Audit Committee. To complete the enacting measure for Proposition C, the City Auditor must be appointed by the City Manager (Mayor), in
consultation with the Audit Committee, and confirmed by the City Council. This organization chart reflects the reporting structure called for in Proposition C, which will be in effect following that Council action.

27



City oF SaN DiEGco

ComPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Financial Reporting Entity

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, the
following component units are incorporated into the accompanying financial statements:

Centre
(CCDC)

City Development Corporation

City of San Diego Metropolitan Transit
Development Board Authority (MTDB)

Redevelopment Agency of the City of San
Diego (RDA)

San Diego Data
(SDDPC)

Processing Corporation

San Diego Housing Commission (SDHC)

San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District
#1

Community Facilities
Assessment Districts

and Other Special

Convention Center
Authority (CCEFA)

Expansion Financing

San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System
(SDCERS)
Public Facilities Financing Authority (PFFA)

San Diego Convention Center
(SDCCC)

San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing
Corporation (SDFELC)

Corporation

San Diego Industrial Development Authority

(SDIDA)

Southeastern Economic Development
Corporation (SEDC)

Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding

Corporation (TSRFC)

e Tourism Marketing District

Additionally, the City participates in a joint venture operation with a private company to
provide for emergency medical and medical transportation services. This joint venture is a
limited liability company named San Diego Medical Services Enterprise, LLC. The financial
impact of the joint venture is displayed in the General Fund within the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance and in the government-
wide statement of activities.

Budgetary Process

Pursuant to the City Charter, an annual budget is presented by the Mayor to the City
Council for consideration. Set forth in this budget are the anticipated revenues and
expenditures of the General Fund, certain special revenue funds, enterprise funds, and
certain debt service funds for the ensuing fiscal year. Additionally, project-length financial
plans are presented to and adopted by the City Council for the capital projects funds. The
legal level of budgetary control for the City’s general fund is exercised at the salaries and
wages and non-personnel expenditures level. Budgetary control for the other budgeted
funds, including those of certain component units, is maintained at the total fund
appropriation level. Copies of the City’s budgets are available at the Financial Management
Office located at 202 C Street, MS8A, San Diego, CA 92101.

The City continues to look for ways to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of its

operations. The focus now is on crafting policy that will ensure a continued commitment to
strong financial stewardship.
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Sincerely,

4 tone
ief Operating Officer

Kénton C. Whitfield
City Comptroller
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402 W. Broadway, Suite 400
San Diego, CA 92101
619.573.0112

MACIAS GINI & O'CONNELL w»

Certified Public Accountants & Management Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of San Diego, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of San Diego, California (City), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the San Diego Housing Commission, a discretely presented component unit, which
statements reflect 90%, 95% and 85% of the total assets, total net assets and total revenues, respectively,
of the aggregate discretely presented component unit totals. Also, we did not audit the Southeastern
Economic Development Corporation, a blended component unit, which statements reflect less than 1% in
each of the total assets, total net assets and total revenues categories, respectively, of the aggregate
remaining fund information. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports
thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the San
Diego Housing Commission and the Southeastern Economic Development Corporation is based solely on
the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2009, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

W cpa.eom An Independent Member of the BDO Seldman Allionce
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As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations, effective July 1, 2008.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 21, 2009, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of funding progress and schedule of contributions
from employer and other contributing entities, and general fund budgetary information on pages 35
through 48, 168, and 172 through 174, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information, and,
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
based on our audit and the report of other auditors, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Macis o & C Cn 0 Li®
Certified Public Accountants

San Diego, California
December 21, 2009
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)
June 30, 2009

As management of the City of San Diego (City), we offer readers of the City financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic
financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements; (2) fund financial
statements; and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The focus of the government-wide financial statements is on reporting on the operating results and financial position of the
government as an economic entity. These statements are intended to report the entity’s operational accountability to its readers,
giving information about the probable medium and long-term effects of past decisions on the government’s financial position.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing changes in the City's net assets during the fiscal year 2009. All
changes in net assets are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. The focus is on both gross and net costs of City functions, which are supported by general revenues. This
Statement also distinguishes functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include: General Government and Support;
Public Safety - Police; Public Safety - Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security; Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure;
Transportation; Sanitation and Health; and Neighborhood Services. The business-type activities of the City include: Airports;
City Store; Development Services; Environmental Services; Golf Course; Recycling; Sewer Utility; and Water Utility.

The government-wide financial statements include the City (known as the primary government) and the following legally
separate, discretely presented component units: San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC); and San Diego Housing
Commission (SDHC). Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government. Blended component units, also legally separate entities, are a part of the government’s
operations and are combined with the primary government.

Included within the primary government as blended component units:

o  Centre City Development Corporation (CCDC)

o  City of San Diego Metropolitan Transit Development Board Authority (MTDB Authority)
o  City of San Diego Tobacco Settlement Revenue Funding Corporation (TSRFC)

e  Community Facilities and Other Special Assessment Districts

e  Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority (CCEFA)

e  Public Facilities Financing Authority (PFFA)

o  Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego (RDA)

o  San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System (SDCERS)

e  San Diego Data Processing Corporation (SDDPC)
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o  San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corporation (SDFELC)
e  San Diego Industrial Development Authority (SDIDA)

e  San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District #1

e  Southeastern Economic Development Corporation (SEDC)

o Tourism Marketing District (TMD)
The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 52 of this report.
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet
and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, which
is a major fund. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the Supplementary Information section of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget and is presented as required supplementary information.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found beginning on page 56 of this report.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds, enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City
uses Enterprise Funds to account for its various business-type activities, such as Sewer and Water Utilities. Internal Service
funds, such as Fleet Services, Central Stores, Publishing Services, and Self Insurance, are used to report activities that provide
centralized supplies and/or services to the City. All internal service funds, except for the Special Engineering Fund, have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements since they predominantly benefit
governmental functions. The Special Engineering Fund, which services exclusively Sewer and Water activities, has been
included within business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
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Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer and Water funds, which are
considered to be major funds of the City. Data for the nonmajor proprietary funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation, and the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation as well. Included in the
Supplementary Information section of this report are individual fund data for the nonmajor proprietary funds and the internal
service funds. The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found beginning on page 60 of this report.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
City’s operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found beginning on page 63 of this report.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on page 65 of this report.

OTHER INFORMATION

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary
information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and postemployment healthcare benefits to
its employees, and the General Fund’s budgetary comparison schedule. Required supplementary information can be found
beginning on page 170 of this report.

The individual fund data referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor proprietary funds, internal

service funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions and
the General Fund budgetary comparison schedule, beginning on page 199 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S SUMMARY OF NET ASSETS
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Capital Assets $ 4,455,525 $ 4335317 $ 4,766,721 $ 4634918 $ 9,222,246 $ 8,970,235
Other Assets 2,110,185 2,096,751 1,357,070 1,031,815 3,467,255 3,128,566
Total Assets 6,565,710 6,432,068 6,123,791 5,666,733 12,689,501 12,098,801
Net Long-Term Liabilities 2,164,276 1,965,991 2,413,033 2,068,569 4,577,309 4,034,560
Other Liabilities 143,231 312,696 110,479 108,455 253,710 421,151
Total Liabilities 2,307,507 2,278,687 2,523,512 2,177,024 4,831,019 4,455,711
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 3,530,937 3,518,704 2,970,351 2,933,012 6,501,288 6,451,716
Restricted 564,605 564,042 42,485 39,436 607,090 603,478
Unrestricted 162,661 70,635 587,443 517,261 750,104 587,896

Total Net Assets $ 4,258,203 $ 4,153,381 $ 3,600,279 § 3,489,709 $ 7,858,482 $ 7,643,090

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
City, assets exceeded liabilities by $7,858,482 at June 30, 2009, an increase of $215,392 over fiscal year 2008.

$6,501,288, or approximately 82%, of total Net Assets represent the City's investment in capital assets (e.g., land, structures and
improvements, equipment, distribution and collections systems, infrastructure, and construction-in-progress), less any
outstanding debt used to acquire these assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves generally are not used to liquidate these liabilities.

$607,090, or approximately 8%, of total Net Assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may
be used. The remaining balance of $750,104, or approximately 10%, is available to finance ongoing services and obligations to
the City’s citizens and creditors.

Unrestricted Net Assets increased by $162,208, or approximately 28%. Approximately $70,000 of this increase was in the
Business-Type activities, primarily attributed to Council approved rate increases. Governmental activities increased by
approximately $92,000. This was primarily the result of revenues exceeding expenses for RDA by approximately $70,000. RDA
projects are multi-year in nature, and therefore, revenues collected on an annual basis are often budgeted for future larger
construction phases of the projects. In addition, RDA experienced increased property tax revenues from fiscal year 2008 to
2009. Another material increase was a $20,000 increase to debt service reserves not legally restricted but internally set aside.
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CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(In Thousands)

Govermnmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for Current Services $ 345,532 $ 289,985 $ 771,725 $ 772,602 $ 1,117,257 $ 1,062,587
Operating Grants and Contributions 93,244 75,126 1,739 2312 94,983 77,438
Capital Grants and Contributions 110,802 78,347 60,863 58,400 171,665 136,747
General Revenues
Property Taxes 607,857 576,605 - - 607,857 576,605
Transient Occupancy Taxes 140,657 159,348 - - 140,657 159,348
Other Local Taxes 161,485 151,267 - - 161,485 151,267
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to
Specific Programs 8,488 6,251 - - 8,488 6,251
Sales Taxes 229,651 269,757 - - 229,651 269,757
Investment Income 75,245 96,725 31,004 41,224 106,249 137,949
Other 51,598 85,785 8,257 7,850 59,855 93,635
Total Revenues 1,824,559 1,789,196 873,588 882,388 2,698,147 2,671,584
Expenses:
General Government and Support 303,581 322,157 - - 303,581 322,157
Public Safety-Police 418,549 382,907 - - 418,549 382,907
Public Safety-Fire, Life Safety, Homeland Security 220,787 204,822 - - 220,787 204,822
Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure 258,038 231,955 - - 258,038 231,955
Transportation 239,305 212,255 - - 239,305 212,255
Sanitation and Health 7447 51,772 - - 7,447 51,772
Neighborhood Services 116,735 91,110 - - 116,735 91,110
Debt Service:
Interest on Long-Term Debt 84,070 82,211 - - 84,070 82,211
Airports - - 5,140 4,109 5,140 4,109
City Store - - 321 788 321 788
Development Services - - 47,260 51,461 47,260 51,461
Environmental Services - - 35718 37,219 35718 37,219
Golf Course - - 11,864 11,142 11,864 11,142
Recycling - - 20,067 20,511 20,067 20,511
Sewer Utility - - 314,125 322,552 314,125 322,552
Water Utility - - 329,748 321123 329,748 321123
Total Expenses 1,718,512 1,579,189 764,243 768,965 2,482,755 2,348,154
Change in Net Assets Before Transfers: 106,047 210,007 109,345 113,423 215,392 323,430
Transfers (1,225) 3,551 1,225 (3,551)
Net Change in Net Assets 104,822 213,558 110,570 109,872 215,392 323,430
Net Assets - July 1 4,153,381 3,939,823 3,489,709 3,379,837 7,643,090 7,319,660
Net Assets - June 30 § 47258203 § 4153381 $ 3600279 § 3489709 $ 7,858,482 $ 7,643,090
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GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $104,822 during fiscal year 2009. Variances from fiscal year 2008 of
more than 10% are discussed below.

e Charges for Services increased by $55,547, or approximately 19%. The Special Engineering Fund was closed out during
fiscal year 2009, and all Water and Sewer engineering positions were transferred to the General Fund. Charges for
Services revenue increased as a result of those engineers billing Water and Sewer capital improvement projects.

e  Operating Grants and Contributions increased by $18,118, or approximately 24%, mainly due to an increase in Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) revenues. This was primarily the result of CDBG funded projects for non-City owned
assets for various public improvements.

e  Capital Grants and Contributions increased by $32,455, or approximately 41%, which was caused by several factors. The
City was awarded two new grants related to a 2007 landslide in the La Jolla area. The first was a Homeland Security grant
for the Desert View Drive Area of La Jolla ($6,800), and the second was a federal grant for the Mount Soledad Road area
($11,900). In addition, there were increased revenues recognized for several other Capital Outlay grants including a
Seismic Retrofit federal grant ($5,500), a Prop1B State Grant ($4,500), and a La Jolla/Pacific Beach/Ocean Beach/Mission
Bay Water grant ($1,200). Donated capital assets increased by $8,900, which included park land turned over to the City
($3,200) and land exchanged with the County for open space ($2,600). These increases were offset by a decrease of
approximately $9,400 in CDBG related capital projects for city-owned public improvements.

o Transient Occupancy Taxes decreased by $18,691, or approximately 12%, primarily due to the economic downturn in San
Diego’s tourism industry.

e  Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs increased by $2,237, or approximately 36%, primarily due to
one-time revenue received by RDA for the sale of downtown condominium units, pursuant to a participation agreement with
a developer.

e Sales Taxes decreased by $40,106, or approximately 15%. The General Fund's sales tax revenue decreased by
approximately $22,700, primarily due to declining retail sales as part of the overall downturn in the economy. TransNet's
sales tax revenue decreased by approximately $15,000. In fiscal year 2008 the City was awarded $4,900 for the Bike
Lanes and Major Corridor Programs, and in fiscal year 2009 the City was not awarded any new funds for these programs.
In addition, SANDAG deferred approximately $5,500 in sales tax disbursements to the City because the City was in violation
of a SANDAG Board ruling which states that the City cannot maintain a balance in excess of 30% of the yearly
apportionment. SANDAG deferred disbursement until the balance in the fund is reduced to meet the 30% rule.

e Investment Income decreased by $21,480, or approximately 22%, primarily due to declining interest rates during 2008 and a
decrease in interest income from the reinvestment of the investment pool’s assets at these record low interest rates.

e  Other Revenue decreased by $34,187, or approximately 40% primarily due to a $20,200 decrease in Proceeds from Land
Sales. Due to the real estate market decline, the City has not sold the remaining parcels that were designated for
disposition as part of the portfolio management plan for the City. There were also decreases in developer contributions in
the Impact Fees Fund of $9,300 and the Facilities Benefit Assessment Fund of $2,400. These decreases were attributed to
several communities, mainly Centre City ($7,000), but also including smaller decreases in Uptown Urban Communities,
Pacific Highlands Ranch, and Scripps Miramar Ranch.

e Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure expense increased by $26,083, or approximately 11%, primarily due to the creation
of the new Tourism Marketing District (TMD). Fiscal Year 2009 was the first full year for the TMD, causing an increase in
expenditures of approximately $9,500. There were also increases in depreciation of governmental capital assets in the
amount of $6,700 and Net Pension Obligation expense of $6,900.
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e Transportation expense increased by $27,050, or approximately 13%, primarily due to the Underground Surcharge
expenses. Since the underground program is funded by SDG&E franchise revenues, which came in lower than anticipated
during fiscal year 2008, expenditures for the undergrounding of utility lines increased by approximately $17,000 during fiscal
year 2009 when revenues came in higher. Expenses related to the addition of the new Right of Way Design Program also
increased by approximately $6,400.

e  Sanitation and Health expense increased by $25,675, or approximately 50%, primarily due to an increase in the General
Fund’s Storm Water department expenditures. The City’s Storm Drain and Street Sweeping programs were transferred to
the Storm Water department from the Streets and Public Safety-Police departments, which accounted for an increase of
approximately $20,200. In addition, the Convention Center Fund paid $5,900 for a one-time capacity fee adjustment for the
annual cost of effluent dewatering.

e Neighborhood Services expense increased by $25,625, or approximately 28%. This increase was primarily the result of a
settlement agreement with the County of San Diego regarding the Grantville Redevelopment Project area for $39,200. This
was partially offset by a decrease of approximately $9,300 which was attributed to a prior year loss on the disposition of an
RDA parcel of land in the Centre City Project area, related to the Renaissance Hotel project. The loss was mostly due to
timing differences in revenue and expense recognition because advances from the developer were recognized in prior years
as the funds were used to acquire the property.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $110,570 during fiscal year 2009. Variances from fiscal year 2008 of
more than 10% are discussed below.

o Investment Income decreased by $10,220, or approximately 25%, primarily due to a bottoming out of declining interest rates
around December 2008 and a decrease in interest income from the reinvestment of the Investment Pool's assets at these
record low interest rates.

o Airports expense increased by $1,031, or approximately 25%, primarily due to higher personnel costs. This was the result
of filling supervisory positions, as well as emergency repairs and maintenance performed on buildings and runways.

e  City Store expense decreased by $467, or approximately 59%, primarily due to the City Store operations being shut down
during fiscal year 2009.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of fiscal year 2009, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1,740,792, an
increase of $149,488 from fiscal year 2008. Approximately $999,926 constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government’s direction. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed (1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the period, (2) to pay debt
service, (3) to generate income to pay for the perpetual funding of various programs, or (4) for a variety of other purposes.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2009, undesignated fund balance of the

General Fund was $78,347, while total fund balance was $114,392. This represents a $10,389 decrease from the fiscal year
2008 total fund balance.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.

As of the end of fiscal year 2009, Unrestricted Net Assets of the Sewer Utility Fund are $292,441. Unrestricted Net Assets
increased approximately $48,724, or approximately 20%, mainly due to increased charges for services as a result of Council
approved rate increases.

As of the end of fiscal year 2009, Unrestricted Net Assets of the Water Utility Fund are $232,899. Unrestricted Net Assets
increased by $21,054, or approximately 10%, mainly due to increased sales of water as a result of Council approved rate
increases.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The original budget for expenditures and transfers out was $24,744 higher than the final budget due to increases (decreases) in
appropriations primarily attributed to the following:

o ($10,548) for General Governmental and Support. This variance was mostly attributed to the departments below:

o ($11,016) for Citywide Programs. The majority of the budget adjustment ($7,614) is due to employee
leveraged pick up savings being reimbursed to employees out of the UAAL fund instead of the General Fund.
City Elections budget decreased by ($1,975) due to fewer propositions on the November ballot and no run-off
elections. The remaining ($1,427) is made up of a decrease in the amount of Mission Bay revenue
transferred to the Park Improvement Fund and other miscellaneous adjustments.

o $8,377 due to an increase in the General Fund Appropriated Reserve.

o ($1,200) for City Treasurer. This decrease was due to the first quarter budget adjustments approved by City
Council, which reduced funding for supplies and services, as well as personnel costs.

o ($3,853) for City Comptroller, Facilities Maintenance, Field Engineering, and Project Implementation and
Technical Services. This decrease was mainly due to the first quarter budget adjustments approved by City
Council, which reduced funding for supplies and services, as well as personnel costs.

o ($2,837) for City Planning and Development, Community Services, Customer Services, Office of Ethics and
Integrity, and Public Safety. This decrease was due to the first quarter budget adjustments approved by City
Council, which eliminated these four departments.

o ($7,902) for Public Safety-Police. The majority of the budget reduction was in personnel, which was attributed to vacant
positions, the decrease in recruits from the Police Academy, and overtime savings.

e $10,414 for Public Safety-Fire and Life Services and Homeland Security. The increase in budget was primarily due to over
budget expenditures related to overtime Strike Team activities for wildfires and other Federal Emergency Management
Agency requirements, unanticipated retirements, and an increase in reimbursable Emergency Medical Services.

e ($1,560) for Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure. This decrease was mainly due to the first quarter budget adjustments
approved by City Council.

e ($4,561) for Transportation. This decrease was due to vacant reimbursable positions in the Streets Department and a
budget reduction in supplies and services approved by City Council in December.

e ($10,273) for Sanitation and Health. The decrease was primarily due to the first quarter budget adjustments approved by
City Council, which reduced funding for Storm Drain Repairs, Contracts, Pollution Prevention, and personnel costs.
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e $818 for Principal Retirement. This increase was due to capital lease payments for Police and Parking Enforcement
vehicles, as well as equipment, vehicles and helicopters for the Public Safety-Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security
department.

e  $194 for Interest Expense. This increase was due to capital lease payments for Police and Parking Enforcement vehicles,
as well as equipment, vehicles and helicopters for the Public Safety-Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security.

Actual revenues received for the General Fund were $64,787 less than budgeted. Sales Tax and Transient Occupancy Tax were
under budget by $10,700 and $8,424, respectively, due to the downturn in the economy. Other Local Taxes were under budget
by $4,545 mainly due to Property Transfer Tax which came in lower than anticipated. This was the result of reduced home sales
and shortfalls in SDG&E and Refuse Collection Franchise Fees. Revenue from Use of Money and Property came in $10,099
under budget, due to declining market values for the City’s investment pool. Revenue from Federal Agencies came in $11,433
under budget. $2,347 was budgeted to come in during fiscal year 2009 but was actually accrued as fiscal year 2008 revenue.
Charges for Current Services came in $2,101 over budget due to the Engineering Department's work on Water and Sewer
capital improvement projects. Other revenue was $21,562 less than budgeted, which was due to Engineering’s charges to
Water and Sewer capital projects being received in the Charges for Services category, rather than in Other Revenue, where it
was originally budgeted.

Actual expenditures for the General Fund were $45,464 less than budgeted. $20,136 was attributed primarily to an increase in
the budget of the General Fund Appropriated Reserve without corresponding expenditures, and lower than anticipated
allocations from the General Fund Fringe Benefits Reserve. The Fringe Benefits Reserve is used to compensate departments
for fringe expenditures in excess of the Revised Budget. In addition, several categories had appropriation savings: Public
Safety-Police had personnel and supplies and services savings of $6,827; Sanitation and Health had savings of $9,168 mainly
due to vacant positions and delays in contractual expenditures for the Storm Water department; Parks, Recreation, Culture, and
Leisure had savings of $3,331 largely due to conservative spending in non-personnel costs. The remaining $6,002 was primarily
due to personnel savings in Neighborhood Services and non-personnel savings in Transportation.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
(In Thousands)

Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land, Easements, Rights of Way $ 1,768,968 $ 1,755,956 $ 93240 $ 89,988 $ 1,862,208 $ 1,845,944

Construction-in-Progress 192,741 165,880 291,283 174,065 484,024 339,945
Structures and Improvements 826,488 827,912 1,253,903 1,422,839 2,080,391 2,250,751
Equipment 169,387 133,317 156,891 102,069 326,278 235,386
Distribution and Collection Systems - - 2,971,404 2,845,957 2,971,404 2,845,957
Infrastructure 1,497,941 1,452,252 - - 1,497,941 1,452,252

Totals $ 4,455,525 $ 4,335,317 $ 4,766,721 $ 4,634,918 $ 9,222,246 $ 8,970,235
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CAPITAL ASSETS

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, all major infrastructure assets (such as streets, signals, bridges, and drains) are
capitalized by the City in the government-wide statements. While capital assets of both governmental and proprietary funds are
capitalized at the government-wide level, only proprietary assets are reported at the fund level. Governmental funds are reported
on a modified accrual basis at the fund level. Differences between reporting at the fund level and government-wide level for
these governmental assets will be explained in both the reconciliation and the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

The City’s investment in capital assets (including infrastructure) for governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2009 was $9,222,246 (net of accumulated depreciation). There was an overall increase in the City’s investment in capital assets
over fiscal year 2008 of approximately $252,011. Readers interested in more detailed information on capital asset activity should
refer to Note 4 Capital Assets.

HIGHLIGHTS OF FISCAL YEAR 2009 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ACTIVITIES

Governmental Activities

e Phase 1 of the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System Core Project to provide a replacement of the legacy software
currently used by the Offices of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Business and Support Services was completed and
implemented city-wide on July 1, 2009. As identified in the Kroll report, the legacy system was no longer meeting the City’s
requirement for responsible financial management, efficient human resources management, or IT operational efficiency.
The project is being funded primarily through a lease purchase agreement with IBM Credit LLC and cash from SDDPC. The
City’s fiscal year 2009 capital expenditures for this project were $19,501.

o  Construction continued on the reconstruction of Soledad Mountain Road following the October 2007 landslide that
destroyed a large section of the 5700 block of Soledad Mountain Road and Desert View Drive Alley. The project is funded
by TransNet, as well as state and federal grants. The City’s fiscal year 2009 capital expenditures for this project were
$12,594.

e  Construction continues on the North Harbor Drive Bridge over the Navy Estuary. This project will provide for the seismic
retrofitting of the bridge as well as stabilization of the existing piers, and joining the paired piers together at the waterline to
increase support during seismic events. The City’s fiscal year 2009 capital expenditures for this project were $9,953.

o Construction was completed on the Bird Rock Coastal Traffic Flow Improvements. This project provides traffic calming
measures to reduce speed and improve safety and walkability on La Jolla Boulevard. The project provides three modern
roundabouts on La Jolla Boulevard, as well as three mini roundabouts on connecting residential streets. La Jolla Boulevard
will also be reduced from four to two lanes. The project was funded by SANDAG, TransNet, Developer Impact Fees, and
federal and state grants. The City added $6,207 in capital infrastructure assets related to this project in fiscal year 2009.

o  Construction was completed on the widening of Genesee Avenue from Interstate 5 to Campus Point Drive. This project
provided for the widening of 2,500 feet of Genesee Avenue to a modified six-lane primary arterial including Class Il bicycle
lanes. The project was funded by Facility Benefit Assessments. The City added $6,500 in capital infrastructure assets
related to this project in fiscal year 2009.

e  Construction continued on Phase Il of the Logan Heights Branch Library. This project provides for a new 25,000 square
foot library at 28! Street and Ocean Boulevard to serve the Logan Heights Community. The project is funded by various
grants and the Library System Improvement Fund. The City’s fiscal year 2009 capital expenditures for this project were
$5,540.

e  Construction was completed on the Carmel Valley Community Park South. This project provided for the development of a
15 useable acre community park in the Torrey Hills and Carmel Valley Neighborhoods south of State Route 56, located in
Carmel Valley Neighborhood 8A. The City added $8,816 in capital infrastructure assets related to this project in fiscal year
2009.

e Construction began on the First Avenue Bridge Rehabilitation and Retrofit project. This project will provide for seismic
retrofits to the abutments, expansion joints and bracing of the First Ave Bridge; as well as extensive hardware restoration
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and replacement. The project is part of the Uptown Community Plan. The City’s fiscal year 2009 capital expenditures for
this project were $3,714.

e  Construction continued on the Bayshore Bikeway. The project provides for construction of a Class | bikeway from the
northern end of 13t Street to Main Street at the I-5 interchange at the Southeast corner of San Diego Bay and will complete
the missing segment of the planned bike path around San Diego Bay from Point Loma to Coronado. The project is funded
by TransNet Major Corridor funds. The City’s fiscal year 2009 capital expenditures for this project were $3,217.

Business-Type Activities

During fiscal year 2009, the Water Utility Fund added approximately $147,500 in capital improvement projects (CIP). Upgrades
and expansion of the Miramar Water Treatment Plant, Otay Water Treatment Plant and the Alvarado Water Treatment Plant
continued, along with water main replacements. Capital asset write-offs for fiscal year 2008 were approximately $8,100, and
were primarily related to losses on abandoned projects and retirements of developer contributed assets.

During fiscal year 2009, the Sewer Utility Fund added approximately $49,500 in CIP, of which the Metropolitan system CIP
increased approximately $4,900. Municipal system CIP increased approximately $44,600 and included the following major
projects: Caltrans/SR-905 Otay Mesa Trunk Sewer, Pipeline Rehabilitation Phase C-1, and the continued replacement of sewer
mains and upgrades to the sewer infrastructure. Capital asset write-offs for fiscal year 2008 were approximately $3,500, and
were primarily related to losses on abandoned projects and retirements of developer contributed assets.

HIGHLIGHTS OF APPROVED FISCAL YEAR 2010 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) BUDGET

The Annual Approved Capital Improvements Budget for Fiscal Year 2010 is $478,400 which is a decrease of $108,600, or
approximately 18.5% from the fiscal year 2009 budget of $587,000. The decrease in the Fiscal Year 2010 budget is primarily
due to one-time financing and Proposition 1B funds which were included in the Fiscal Year 2009 Annual Capital Improvement
budget for deferred maintenance needs. Water and Sewer projects comprise over 59.3% of the total CIP budget. Engineering &
Capital Projects and General Services projects comprise 25.4%, and 2.5% of the total CIP budget, respectively. Funding for
governmental projects include: TransNet funds; Facilities Benefit Assessments; Developer Impact Fees; developer contributions;
federal, state, local, and private contributions; land sale proceeds; and deferred maintenance bonds. Highlights of the key
budgets by department are as follows:

Governmental Activities

e  Engineering and Capital Projects: $121,500 (25.4% of total CIP budget). Key projects include the undergrounding of
City utilities to augment the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) Rule 20A funds, and conversion of City-
owned street lighting and resurfacing of roadways associated with the undergrounding of utilities. The $48,900 annual
allocation for these projects is entirely funded by the Underground Surcharge Fund. Other significant projects include:
$11,100 for ADA improvements, $10,200 for Carroll Canyon Road, $3,500 for North Torrey Pines Road, and $3,000 for
431 Street and Logan/National Ave Intersection.

e  General Services: $12,200 (2.5% of total CIP budget). Key budgets include: $11,800 for deferred maintenance
projects.

e Parks and Recreation: $29,400 (6.1% of total CIP budget). Planned project types for fiscal year 2010 include play
area upgrades, joint use fields, accessibility improvements, comfort stations, picnic shelters, sports field and security
lighting, new park development, and golf course improvements and upgrades.

e OneSD Support: $9,900 (2.1% of total CIP budget). This budget is for completion of the Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP) System.

e  City Planning and Community Investments: $5,500 (1.1% of total CIP budget). This budget is for downtown parking
improvement projects.
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Business-Type Activities

The fiscal year 2010 Water Utility CIP budget is $149,800. There are no phase funded projects budgeted for fiscal year 2010.
Significant projects include: $43,000 for water main replacements; $37,900 for the Alvarado Water Treatment Plant-Upgrade
and Expansion; $15,700 for the Miramar Water Treatment Plant-Upgrade and Expansion; $9,400 for the North City Reclamation
System.

The fiscal year 2010 Sewer Utility CIP budget is $134,100. There are no phase funded projects budgeted for fiscal year 2010.
Significant projects include: $74,300 for pipeline repair, replacement, and rehabilitation; $39,200 for replacement of trunk sewers;
$8,900 for repair and upgrade of pump stations; and $7,600 for the repair and upgrade of treatment plants.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO'S OUTSTANDING DEBT
(In Thousands)

Total
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Capital Lease Obligatons $§ 89,519 $ 61262 $ -9 166 $ 89,519 $ 61428
Contracts Payable 4,715 2,615 - - 4,715 2,615
Notes Payable 4,786 5,662 - 430,830 4,786 436,492
Loans Payable 44,815 34,777 90,326 95,875 135,141 130,652
Section 108 Loans 33,532 35,896 - - 33,532 35,896
General Obligation Bonds 6,315 8,580 - - 6,315 8,580
Revenue Bonds/COP's/
Lease Revenue Bonds 579,500 498,950 2,166,906 1,425,445 2,746,406 1,924,395
Special Assessment/
Special Tax Bonds 152,270 144,805 - - 152,270 144,805
Tax Allocation Bonds 534,547 548,643 - - 534,547 548,643
Tobacco Settlement
Asset-Backed Bonds 95,380 99,370 - - 95,380 99,370
Pooled Financing Bonds 33,460 34,115 - - 33,460 34,115
Totals $ 1,578,839 $ 1,474,675 $ 2,257,232 $ 1,952,316 $ 3,836,071 $ 3,426,991

LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of fiscal year 2009, the City, including blended component units, had total debt outstanding of approximately
$3,836,071. Of this amount, $6,315 is comprised of debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the
City’s debt represents revenue bonds, lease revenue bonds, certificates of participation (COPs), special assessment bonds, tax
allocation bonds, tobacco settlement asset-backed bonds, pooled financing bonds, contracts payable, notes payable, loans
payable, Section 108 loans, SRF loans, and capital lease obligations.

Governmental Activities

e The City issued $12,365 of Community Facilities District No. 4 (Black Mountain Ranch Villages) Special Tax Bonds,
Series 2008 A, to finance public improvements required in connection with the district, to fund the Reserve Fund, and
to pay costs of issuance related to the 2008A Bonds. The 2008A bonds were issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982 and are limited obligations of the district.
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e The City (PFFA) sold $103,000 of Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A, on a private placement basis, for the purpose
of financing various capital improvement projects. The 2009A bonds are secured from base rental payments and bear
interest at a rate of 3.89% through June 1, 2010. Thereafter the rate will be fixed to equal the purchaser’s internal cost
of funds rate plus a fixed spread of 3.00%, but not to exceed 12% until the final maturity date of December 1, 2018.

e Total principal payments for long-term debt were $64,542. $48,356 of this amount was for outstanding bonds, $2,809
was for loans payable, $876 was for notes payable, and $12,501 was for capital leases. Readers interested in more
detailed information regarding Governmental Activities Long Term Liabilities should refer to Note 5.

Business-Type Activities

e The City (PFFA) issued $157,190 of Water Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2009A for the following purposes: to
prepay $57,000 of outstanding principal on the Subordinated Water Revenue Notes, Series 2007A,; to partially refund
$94,165 of Certificates of Undivided Interest, Series 1998; to fund the reserve; and to pay costs of issuance related to
the Series 2009A Bonds. The publicly offered Water 2009A Revenue Refunding Bonds are secured by and payable
solely from net system revenues of the Water Utility Fund.

e The City (PFFA) issued $453,775 of Senior Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A for the following purposes: to
finance capital improvements to the Wastewater System; to pay in full $223,830 of Subordinate Sewer Revenue Notes,
Series 2007; to partially refund $36,635 of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A and $13,410 of Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series 1997B; to fund the reserve; and to pay costs of issuance related to the Series 2009A Bonds. The
publicly offered Sewer 2009A Revenue Bonds are secured by and payable solely from wastewater system net
revenues.

e The City (PFFA) issued $634,940 of Senior Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B for the following
purposes: to fully refund $160,220 of outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1993; to partially refund $211,455 of
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995; to partially refund $80,255 of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A and $29,385
of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1997B; to partially refund $97,845 of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A and
$54,015 of Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999B; to fund the reserve; and to pay costs of issuance related to the
Series 2009A Bonds. The publicly offered Sewer 2009B Revenue Refunding Bonds are secured by and payable solely
from wastewater system net revenues.

e The City (PFFA) issued $328,060 of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2009B for the following purposes: to finance
capital improvements to the Water System; to prepay $150,000 of outstanding principal on the Subordinated Water
Revenue Notes, Series 2008A; to fund the reserve; and to pay costs of issuance related to the series 2009B Bonds.
The publicly offered Water 2009B Revenue Bonds are secured by and payable solely from net system revenues of the
Water Utility Fund.

e Total principal payments for long-term debt were $1,269,049, of which $832,504 was for outstanding bonds, including
$786,910 of bonds refunded or redeemed in advance of scheduled maturity date, and $45,594 of scheduled bond
principal payments. $430,830 was for outstanding notes prepaid, $5,549 was for loans payable, and $166 was for
capital leases.  Readers interested in more detailed information regarding Business-Type Activities Long Term
Liabilities should refer to Note 6.
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As of the issuance of this report, the credit ratings on the City of San Diego’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Revenue
Bonds, Lease Revenue Bonds, and COPs are as follows:

Moody's Investors Fitch
Service Ratings Standard & Poor's
General Obligation Bonds A2 A+ A
General Fund Backed Lease
Revenue Bonds Baa1/Baa2 A A-
Outlook Stable Stable Positive
Wastewater System Bonds A2 AA- A+
Outlook Stable Stable Stable
Water System Bonds A1/A2 AA-/A+ AA-/A+
Outlook Stable Stable Stable

Section 90 of the City Charter provides that the general obligation bonded indebtedness for the development, conservation and
furnishings of water shall not exceed 15% of the last preceding assessed valuation of all real and personal property of the City
subject to direct taxation, and that the bonded indebtedness for other municipal improvements shall not exceed 10% of such
valuation. The City’s current outstanding general obligation balances as of June 30, 2009 are significantly less than the current
debt limitations for water and other purposes, which are $5,962,975 and $3,975,316, respectively (see Statistical Section, Table
12).

It has been the City's practice, as provided for in Section 90.1 of the City Charter, to issue revenue bonds for the purpose of
constructing water facilities. Per Section 90.1, revenue bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the City, but an obligation
payable from the revenues received by the utility. Section 90.2 authorizes the issuance of Revenue Bonds for the purpose of
constructing improvements to the City's sewer system.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the City
Comptroller, 202 C Street, San Diego, California 92101, or e-mailed to comptroller@sandiego.gov. This financial report is also
available on the City’s website at www.sandiego.gov, under the Office of the City Comptroller. Additional information intended
for the investor community is available on the Investor Information web page also located on the City’s website listed above.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
San Diego
Convention San Diego
Governmental Business-Type Center Housing
Activities Activities Total Corporation Commission
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 1,320,591 $ 675673 $ 1,996,264 $ 21,756 $ 94,458
Receivables:

Taxes - Net 86,059 - 86,059 - -

Accounts - Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles
(Governmental $34,534, Business-Type $3,019) .. 39,226 79,546 118,772 2,537 6,991
Claims - Net 155 2 157 - -
Contributions ...................... 360 - 360 - -
Special Assessments - Net .........cccccoeeeeeeiieveeeeieceenns 2,993 - 2,993 - -
Notes 122,948 - 122,948 - 169,532
Accrued Interest 4,421 2,535 6,956 - 18,288
Grants 35,702 3,606 39,308 - -
Investment in Joint Venture ...................cooi 1,824 - 1,824 - -
Advances to Other AGEeNCIES .........ccccceeeeeveveeeeeeerieieieens 5777 - 5777 - -
Internal Balances ..............cooeiiiiiiiiiiii e (7,929) 7,929 - - -
Inventories of Water in Storage ...........cccceeevveeeecveveeeeenienns - 36,947 36,947 - -
Inventories 2,033 622 2,655 15 54
Land Held for Resale 39,413 - 39,413 - -
Prepaid Expenses 5,313 461 5,774 1,057 1,623
Restricted Cash and Investments ... 431,547 535,647 967,194 - 699
Deferred Charges 19,752 14,102 33,854 - -
Capital Assets - Non-Depreciable ....................ccceeeen.. 1,961,709 384,523 2,346,232 - 36,545
Capital Assets - Depreciable ............cccoccoviiiiiiiieiiiics 2,493,816 4,382,198 6,876,014 16,404 60,683
TOTAL ASSETS 6,565,710 6,123,791 12,689,501 41,769 388,873
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Primary Government [ Units
San Diego
Convention San Diego
Governmental Business-Type Center Housing
Activities Activities Total Corporation Commission
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ 46,526 $ 45,932 $ 92458 $ 5679 $ 2,905
Accrued Wages and Benefits .. 31,314 12,003 43,317 - 415
Other Accrued Liabilities 210 - 210 1,796 2,638
Interest Accrued on Long-Term Debt ..., 24,488 17,761 42,249 - 124
Long-Term Liabilities Due Within One Year ... 158,140 76,352 234,492 3,077 1,753
Due to Other Agencies 188 11,308 11,496 - -
Unearned Revenue 34,794 7,494 42,288 9,986 2,342
Contract Deposits ... - 8,596 8,596 - -
Sundry Trust Liabilities 5,711 - 5,711 - -
Customer Deposits Payable .................ccoooeiiiiiini - 4,566 4,566 - -
Deposits/Advances from Others . . - 2,819 2,819 - 965

Long-Term Liabilities Due After One Year:
Arbitrage Liability .............cocoiiiiiiiiieee 533 - 533 - -
Compensated AbSENCeS ............cceeeviiiiiiininiienn, 39,534 6,356 45,890 - -
Liability Claims 230,316 29,352 259,668 - -
Capital Lease Obligations ...........cccceveeiieeeieiceieceens 73,556 - 73,556 531 -
Contracts Payable 4,715 - 4,715 - -
Notes Payable ............ccoooiiiiiiiiii 4,786 - 4,786 500 26,671
Loans Payable .............ccoevveiiiiiiiiieieeeeens 36,107 84,673 120,780 - -
Section 108 Loans Payable ....................c..o.ooell 31,075 - 31,075 - -
Net Bonds Payable 1,364,345 2,147,103 3,511,448 - -
Estimated Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care ....... - 19,336 19,336 - -
Pollution Remediation Obligation ........................... - 620 620 - -
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation ........ 73,504 19,767 93,271 - -
Net Pension Obligation 147,665 29,474 177,139 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,307,507 2,523,512 4,831,019 21,569 37,813

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ............ 3,530,937 2,970,351 6,501,288 13,510 69,458
Restricted for:

Capital Projects .........coeeveiiiieeeiiiiiie e 293,284 - 293,284 - -
Debt SErviCe ......c..oovviiiiiiiie e - 4,372 4,372 - -
Low-Moderate Income Housing ............c.ccuuveeunnenn. 135,581 - 135,581 - -
Nonexpendable Permanent Endowments ............... 13,280 - 13,280 - -
Other ... 122,460 38,113 160,573 1,452 128,863
Unrestricted ..........ooooiiiii 162,661 587,443 750,104 5,238 152,739
TOTAL NET ASSETS ......ouoiiiiiiiiinieennne s $ 4,258,203 $ 3,600,279 $ 7,858,482 $ 20,200 $ 351,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government and Support . $ 303,581 $ 152,630 $ 13,449 $ 323
Public Safety - Police 418,549 42,178 14,054 -
Public Safety - Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security ... 220,787 20,449 16,144 1
Parks, Recreation, Culture and Leisure .....................c....... 258,038 80,795 2,282 19,376
Transportation 239,305 18,360 10,572 77,277
Sanitation and Health .... 77,447 9,306 2,097 -
Neighborhood Services ..............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 116,735 21,814 34,646 13,825
Debt Service:
Interest ..o 84,070 - - -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ............... 1,718,512 345,532 93,244 110,802
Business-Type Activities:
Airports 5,140 4,929 - 1,806
City Store .. 321 242 - -
Development Services 47,260 37,310 - -
Environmental Services .... 35,718 31,726 83 -
Golf Course .. 11,864 16,201 - -
Recycling 20,067 16,027 227 -
Sewer Utility .. 314,125 322,571 167 28,780
Water Utility .. 329,748 342,719 1,262 30,277
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES ................ 764,243 771,725 1,739 60,863
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ........cccouvveennns $ 2,482,755 $ 1,117,257 $ 94,983 $ 171,665
Component Units:
San Diego Convention Center Corporation ......................... $ 38,365 $ 30,774 $ 4,129 $ 143
San Diego Housing COMMISSION ..........ccuiviiveiiiiineiieiiennns 179,548 26,095 169,456 -
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS .....ccciiiiiiiiiinninnnnns $ 217,913 $ 56,869 $ 173,585 $ 143

General Revenues:
Property Taxes ...
Transient Occupancy Taxes ...
Other Local Taxes
Developer Contributions and Fees ...
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs ...

Sales Taxes
Investment Income
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets ..
Miscellaneous ...

Transfers

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ...

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR ..
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Net Revenue/(Expense) and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government Component Units
San Diego
Convention San Diego
Governmental Business-Type Center Housing
Activities Activities Total Corporation C ission
$ (137,179) $ - $  (137,179) $ - $ -
(362,317) - (362,317) - -
(184,194) - (184,194) - -
(155,585) - (155,585) - -
(133,096) - (133,096) - -
(66,043) - (66,043) - -
(46,450) - (46,450) - -
(84,070) - (84,070) - -
(1,168,934) - (1,168,934) - -
- 1,595 1,595 - -
- (79) (79) - -
- (9,950) (9,950) - -
- (3,909) (3,909) - -
- 4,337 4,337 - -
- (3,813) (3,813) - -
- 37,393 37,393 - -
- 44,510 44,510 - -
- 70,084 70,084 - -
(1,168,934) 70,084 (1,098,850) - -
- - - (3,319) -
- - - - 16,003
- - - (3,319) 16,003
607,857 - 607,857 - -
140,657 - 140,657 - -
161,485 - 161,485 - -
16,148 - 16,148 - -
8,488 - 8,488 - -
229,651 - 229,651 - -
75,245 31,004 106,249 289 5,543
1,922 - 1,922 - -
33,528 8,257 41,785 579 -
(1,225) 1,225 - - -
1,273,756 40,486 1,314,242 868 5,543
104,822 110,570 215,392 (2,451) 21,546
4,153,381 3,489,709 7,643,090 22,651 329,514
$ 4,258,203 $ 3,600,279 $ 7,858,482 $ 20,200 $ 351,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Receivables:

Taxes - Net

Accounts - Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles (General Fund $7.032, Other Governmental $26,606) ......

Claims - Net

Special Assessments

Notes

Accrued Interest

Grants

From Other Funds

Interfund Loan Receivable

Advances to Other Funds

Advances to Other Agencies

Land Held for Resale

Prepaid Items

Investment in Joint Venture ...

Restricted Cash and Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Pavable

Accrued Wages and Benefits

Other Accrued Liabilities

Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Agencies

Unearned Revenue ...............ccccoeeeeeiieieiinninn,

Deferred Revenue

Sundry Trust Liabilities

Advances from Other Funds

Interfund Loan Pavable

TOTAL LIABILITIES
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Total
Other Gover Gover |
General Fund Funds Funds
$ 86,667 $ 1,085,808 $ 1,172,475
69,438 16,621 86,059
13,891 24,159 38,050
130 16 146
_ 2,993 2,993
- 122,948 122,948
906 3,497 4,403
- 35,702 35,702
1,500 26 1,526
- 33,460 33,460
- 7,959 7,959
- 5,777 5,777
B 39,413 39,413
886 1,351 2,237
1,824 - 1,824
- 431,547 431,547
$ 175,242 $ 1,811,277 $ 1,986,519
$ 3,789 $ 34,295 $ 38,084
27,642 736 28,378
- 210 210
2,095 5,993 8,088
- 188 188
663 34,054 34,717
26,661 58,784 85,445
- 5,711 5711
- 7,959 7,959
- 36,947 36,947
60,850 184,877 245,727




City oF SaN Dieco CoMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Total
Other Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
FUND EQUITY:
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Land Held for Resale ...........ccccoeeeeeececiecineceeen - 39,413 39,413
Reserved for Notes Receivable .............ccccevveeeeeeeeeiineiieenenn.s - 118,907 118,907
Reserved for Encumbrances 32,071 250,665 282,736
RESEIVEA FOIr AGVANCES ......oveeeeeeeee e e e e e e e et et e e e e e et e e e e e e e ane e e eaa e - 13,736 13,736
Reserved for Low and Moderate Income Housing - 95,668 95,668
Reserved for Permanent Endowments .. . - 13,280 13,280
RESEIVEA fOr DEDE SEIVICE .....oueeeeeeeeeeeee et e e e e e et e e e e e e aae e e aes - 175,302 175,302
Reserved for Minority Interest in Joint VENTUIe .............oouiiiiiiiii e 1,824 - 1,824
Unreserved, Reported in General Fund:
Desianated for Unrealized Gains 1,943 - 1,943
Designated for Subsequent Years' EXpeNditures ................ccoveuriiciiicniicie e 207 - 207
UNAESIANGLE ... e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e s eren e e eensennennentenennen 78,347 - 78,347
Unreserved, Reported in:
SPECIal REVENUE FUNGS ... - 221,089 221,089
DEDE SEIVICE FUNGS ...ttt e et e e e et e e e et e e e e e e eeees - 265,236 265,236
Capital Proi@Cts FUNGS .........ooiiiiee et et - 430,479 430,479
Permanent FUNAS ..........oooiiiiiiiiii et - 2,625 2,625
TOTAL FUND EQUITY ..ouiiiiiiiiccccceeeeieii i s s s e e e e e e e s essa s s s a s 114,392 1,626,400 1,740,792
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 175,242 $ 1,811,277
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 4,329,571
Other assets and liabilities used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are either deferred or
not reported in the funds. 105,197
Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of activities such as Fleet Services, Print Shop, Self
Insurance, and Central Stores to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of certain Internal Service Funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 6,826
Certain liabilities, includina bonds pavable, are not due and pavable in the current period. and therefore, are not reported
in the funds. (1,924,183
Net Assets of governmental activities $ 4,258,203

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 398,743 $ 204,831 $ 603,574
Special Assessments - 63,500 63,500
Sales Taxes . . . . . . 212,918 20,222 233,140
TransieNt OCCUDPANCY TAXES .....cuuuitietae ettt et e ettt e e e et et eeh et ea e et e e e e e et e e ea e aenn s 73,765 66,892 140,657
Other Local Taxes 72,432 98,760 171,192
Licenses and Permits 31,249 8,100 39,349
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties . 32,467 1,939 34,406
Revenue from Use of Money and Property ......... 41,461 66,323 107,784
Revenue from Federal Agencies 4,268 66,118 70,386
Revenue from Other Agencies .............. . JEURROTUTRRUOPUTRPRURTT 8,915 43,541 52,456
Revenue from Private Sources ............ . e ————— - 21,593 21,593
Charges for Current Services 133,117 70,315 203,432
Other Revenue 5,296 20,415 25,711
TOTAL REVENUES 1,014,631 752,549 1,767,180
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government and Support . 243,057 101,873 344,930
Public Safety - Police . 389,390 17,267 406,657
Public Safety - Fire and Life Safety and Homeland Security ..............c.coeviiiiiiiiiiiciiee e 195,596 30,100 225,696
Parks, Recreation, CUlture and LEISUIE .............co.iiuiiniinii e 116,391 95,368 211,759
Transportation 72,635 90,334 162,969
Sanitation and Health . .. 67,867 10,393 78,260
INEIGNDOTNOOT SEIVICES ... ittt 17,255 56,530 73,785
Capital Projects - 138,634 138,634
Debt Service:
Principal REHIEMENT ... ettt et e aans 818 56,391 57,209
L) 1= PP PPS 3,106 75,553 78,659
Cost of Issuance - 1,001 1,001
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,106,115 673,444 1,779,559
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (91,484) 79,105 (12,379)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Proprietary Funds . 6,267 1,979 8,246
Transfers from Other Funds ............. . . e 105,059 216,685 321,744
Transfers to Proprietary FUNAS ... e (4,043) (2,547) (6,590)
Transfers to Other Funds .............. . . e (26,031) (295,713) (321,744)
Net Loss from Joint Venture (157) - (157)
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets - 2,157 2,157
Capital Lease - 30,392 30,392
CONTACES ISSUBT .....etieieet et e e et e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e et e et e e e e eaneeeans - 2,100 2,100
Loans Issued - 10,483 10,483
Special Tax Bonds Issued . - 12,365 12,365
Revenue Bonds Issued . . FR - 103,000 103,000
DiSCOUNt ON BONAS ISSUBA .......iiiiiiti ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaanns - (129) (129)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 81,095 80,772 161,867
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (10,389) 159,877 149,488
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 124,781 1,466,523 1,591,304
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 114,392 $ 1,626,400 $ 1,740,792

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of San Diego
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 58) $ 149,488

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period. 121,730

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., donations,
retirements, and transfers) is to decrease net assets. (17,686)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds. 10,410

The issuance of long-term debt (i.e., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items. (100,854)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources (i.e., compensated absenses, net pension obligation), and therefore
are not accrued as expenses in governmental funds. (92,248)

Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of activities such as
Fleet Services, Publishing Services, Central Stores, Self Insurance, and others to individual
funds. The net revenue of certain internal service activities is reported with governmental
activities. 33,982

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 55) $ 104,822

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009
(In Thousands )

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Sewer Water Enterprise Internal Service
Utility Utility Funds Total Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments $ 345,933 $ 225,556 $ 104,184 $ 675,673 $ 148,116
Receivables:
Accounts - Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles (Sewer $930, Water $1,749,
Other Enterprise $340, Internal Service $896) .............ccuvvviiiieeriiiiiiiiinnns 35,172 43,573 801 79,546 1,176
Claims - Net - - 2 2 9
Contributions - - - - 360
Accrued Interest 1,420 604 511 2,535 18
Grants - 1,822 1,784 3,606 -
From Other Funds - - 3,609 3,609 5,980
Inventories of Water in Storage - 36,947 - 36,947 -
Inventories - 620 2 622 2,033
Prepaid Expenses 3 456 2 461 3,076
Total CUITENT ASSEES .......veiiiiiie it 382,528 309,578 110,895 803,001 160,768
Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Cash and INVEStMENES ...........coouiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 231,212 263,883 40,552 535,647 -
Deferred Charges 7,114 6,988 - 14,102 -
Interfund Loan Receivable 3,487 - - 3,487 -
Capital Assets - Non-Depreciable 118,881 240,760 24,882 384,523 1,984
Capital Assets - Depreciable 2,710,102 1,611,573 60,523 4,382,198 123,970
Total Non-Current ASSetS ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,070,796 2,123,204 125,957 5,319,957 125,954
TOTAL ASSETS 3,453,324 2,432,782 236,852 6,122,958 286,722
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Pavable 11,995 32,367 1,570 45,932 8,442
Accrued Wages and Benefits 7,682 2,145 2,176 12,003 2,936
Interest Accrued on Lonag-Term Debt 6,162 11,598 1 17,761 269
Long-Term Debt Due Within ONne Year ...........c..oeiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiie e 54,663 19,705 1,984 76,352 55,267
Due to Other Funds 510 558 147 1,215 1,812
Due to Other Agencies 10,262 1,046 - 11,308 -
Unearned Revenue - 817 6,677 7,494 77
Contract Deposits 3,503 4,756 337 8,596 -
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits Payable - 4,566 - 4,566 -
Total Current Liabilities ... 94,777 77,558 12,892 185,227 68,803
Non-Current Liabilities:
Deposits/Advances from Others 250 - 2,569 2,819 -
Compensated Absences . 2,323 2,036 1,997 6,356 3,795
Liability Claims 27,776 1,576 - 29,352 178,126
Capital Lease Obligations - - - - 21,221
Loans Payable 67,100 17,573 - 84,673 -
Net Revenue Bonds Payable 1,251,957 895,146 - 2,147,103 -
Estimated Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care - - 19,336 19,336 -
Pollution Remediation Obligation ..................c.cccccci - 620 - 620 -
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation 6,916 6,578 6,273 19,767 2,978
Net Pension Obligation 10,785 8477 10,212 29,474 2,925
Total Non-Current Liabilities ..............c.cccociiiiiiiiiiii 1,367,107 932,006 40,387 2,339,500 209,045
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,461,884 1,009,564 53,279 2,524,727 277,848
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,698,249 1,186,697 85,405 2,970,351 97,195
Restricted for Debt Service 750 3,622 - 4,372 -
Restricted for Closure/Postclosure Maintenance - - 38,113 38,113 -
Unrestricted 292,441 232,899 60,055 585,395 (88,321)
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 1,991,440 $ 1423218 $ 183,573 3,598,231 $ 8,874
Adiustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds. 2,048
Net assets of Business-Type activities $ 3,600,279

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Sewer Water Enterprise Internal Service
Utility Utility Funds Total Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of Water $ - $ 324,772 $ - $ 324,772 $ -
Charges for Services ....... 318,474 - 58,789 377,263 160,937
Revenue from Use of Property - 5,418 - 5,418 -
Usage Fees - 1,272 45,672 46,944 81,001
Other .... 4,097 11,257 1,974 17,328 883
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 322,571 342,719 106,435 771,725 242,821
OPERATING EXPENSES
Benefit and Claim Payments............cccoeeiieiiiiie e - - - - 58,416
Maintenance and Operations 119,470 95,979 81,621 297,070 46,347
Cost of Materials Issued ... - - - - 29,149
- 133,499 - 133,499 -
- 162 - 162 -
Administration ... 71,300 33,258 34,138 138,696 55,715
DEPreCiation ...........cccucuiuiiiiieieeeir et 76,554 39,627 5,797 121,978 26,513
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 267,324 302,525 121,556 691,405 216,140
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 55,247 40,194 (15,121) 80,320 26,681
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on Investments .. 13,454 12,478 5,075 31,007 5,182
Federal Grant Assistance - 192 27 219 -
Other Agency Grant ASSIStanCe .............cccccviiiiiiiiciciccces 167 1,070 283 1,520 123
Loss on Sale/Retirement of Capital Assets (3,525) (2,436) (814) (6,775) (236)
Debt Service Interest Expense . (46,151) (28,081) 3) (74,235) (971)
OB ettt 5,244 751 2,262 8,257 10,461
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) .........cccceueuu. (30,811) (16,026) 6,830 (40,007) 14,559
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS .........ccccceuvuue. 24,436 24,168 (8,291) 40,313 41,240
Capital CoNtribULIONS .......c.oiiiiiiiiiie e 28,780 30,277 1,806 60,863 198
Transfers from Other Funds 616 439 276 1,331 163
Transfers from Governmental Funds 1,238 3,443 2,617 7,298 5,723
Transfers to Other FUNAS ..........ocooviiiiiiicceee e (59) (99) (63) (221) (1,273)
Transfers to Governmental FUNAS ..........ccooevvieiiieiiiieiicececeecee e (3,550) (530) (2,464) (6,544) (4,539)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 51,461 57,698 (6,119) 103,040 41,512
Net Assets at Beginning of Year . 1,939,979 1,365,520 189,692 (32,638)
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,991,440 $ 1,423,218 $ 183,573 $ 8,874
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds. 7,530
Change in net assets of Business-Type activities $ 110,570

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
'YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(In Thousands )

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Sewer Water Enterprise Internal Service
Uf Ut Funds Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 327,771 $ 277,717 $ 90,607 $ 696,095 $ 3,182
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 2,688 65,945 18,305 86,938 250,022
Pavments to Suppliers (120,624) (262,356) (41,838) (424,818) (104,650)
Pavments to (41,702) (567) (61,907) (104,176) (90,710)
Pavments for Interfund Services Used (34.733) (13,779) (7.609) 56,121 2,739
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ... 133,400 66,960 (2,442) 197,918 55,105
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from Other Funds 616 406 276 1,298 162
Transfers from tal Funds 1,238 186 2,617 4,041 2,550
Transfers to Other Funds (26) (99) (62) (187) (1,273)
Transfers to Funds (998) (477) (2.464) (3,939) (4,307)
Operatina Grants Received. 167 1,012 238 1417 123
Proceeds from Advances and Deposits - 235 2,569 2,804 -
Pavments for Advances and Deposits - - (25) (25) -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES ... 997 1,263 3,149 5,409 (2,745)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Contracts, Notes and Loans - - - - 10,362
Proceeds from Revenue Bonds 217,469 179,729 - 397,198 -
Proceeds from Capital Ct 10,361 7,631 973 18,965 -
Acauisition of Caital Assets (55,809) (150,587) (6,580) (212,976) (49,169)
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets - 5,707 - 5,707 3,358
Principal Pavments on Capital Leases - - (166) (166) (7,055)
Principal Pavments on Contracts. Notes and Loan: (4,654) (895) - (5,549) -
Principal Pavments on Revenue Bond: (31,700) (13,894) - (45,594) -
Interest Paid on Lona-Term Debt 44,670 (29,625 @1 (74,306 (1,046)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ...... 90,997 (1,934) (5,784) 83,279 (43,550)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales of 988,652 1,671,625 - 2,660,277 -
Purchases of (1,173,015) (1,759,692) - (2,932,707) -
Interest Received on 13,671 13,914 5,632 33,217 5,202
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES ... (170,692 (74,153) 5,632 239,213 5,202
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 54,702 (7,864) 555 47,393 14,012
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 291,240 241,215 144,181 676,636 134,104
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 345,942 $ 233,351 $ 144,736 $ 724,029 $ 148,116
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year to the Statement
of Net Assets:
Cash and $ 345,933 $ 225,556 $ 104,184 $ 675,673 $ 148,116
Restricted Cash & Investments 231,212 263,883 40,552 535,647 -
Less Investments not meetina the definition of cash 231,203 256,088) - (487,291) -
Total Cash and Cash at End of Year $ 345,942 $ 233,351 $ 144,736 $ 724,029 $ 148,116
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities:
Operatina Income (Loss) $ 55,247 $ 40,194 $ (15,121) $ 80,320 $ 26,681
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities:
D 76,554 39,627 5,797 121,978 26,513
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts i - Net 2,455 281 63 2,799 (955)
Claims Receivable - Net - - @) @ 2
Contributi - - - - 39
Due from Other Fund - - 464 464 -
Inventories - (511) 76 (435) 72
Prepaid Expenses 5 (10) 10 5 (710)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Pavable (3,287) (9.719) 8 (12,998) (8,252)
Accrued Wages and Benefits (2,052) 328 193 (1,531) (296)
Due to Other Funds (696) (684) (134) (1,514) (131)
Due to Other Aaencies 7,365 (1,525) - 5,840 -
Unearned Revenue - (326) (372) (698) (49)
Contract Deposits 189 237 62 488 -
Arbitrace Liability (157) (429) - (586) -
c Absences (197) 18 (505) (684) (362)
Liabilitv Claims (11,374) (6,012) - (17,386) 2,331
Estimated Landfill Closure and Care. - - 907 907 -
Pollution ion Obliaation. - 620 - 620 -
Net OPEB Obliaation 3,878 3,919 3,652 11,449 1,237
Net Pension Obliaation 226 201 198 625 (2,401)
Other ina Revenue 5,244 751 2,262 8,257 11,386
Total 78,153 26,766 12,679 117,598 28,424
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 133,400 $ 66,960 $ (2,442) $ 197,918 $ 55,105
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activites:
Canital Leases. $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 10,366
Developer Contributed Assets 18,419 22,646 - 41,065 198
Increase (Decrease) in Caital Assets related Accounts Pavable 7,632 4,530 (382) 11,780 (6,246)
Noncash Reti of Caital Assets (3,525) (8,142) (814) (12,481) (318)
Contributions of Capital Assets from Activities - 3,257 - 3,257 3,174
Proceeds of Refundina Bonds Issued. 907,050 301,165 - 1,208,215 -
Repavment of Refundina Bonds to Escrow. (907,050) (301,165) - (1,208,215) -
Interest Fund Credits for Debt Service Pavmentt (13,281) (5,186) - (18,467) -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Pension &
Employee Investment
Savings Trust Trust Agency
ASSETS
Cash or Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments ..............cccoceeeieieeiiiecieeiecieeene $ 4,616 $ 4,637 $ 29,253
Cash with Custodian/Fiscal Agent ...........cccooiiiiiiiiii e, 371,762 - -
Investments at Fair Value:
Short Term INvestments ..............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiii 33,311 - -
Domestic Fixed Income Securities (Bonds) .............ccoeeiiiiiiiiiiiiinn. 861,555 - -
International Fixed Income Securities (Bonds) ............ccoeveiiiiiieiiiiiieinn. 143,677 - -
Domestic Equity Securities (StockS) ........ccviiiiiiiiiiii 1,444,848 - -
International Equity Securities (StoCKS) .........cooiiiiiiiii 614,246 - -
Real Estate Equity and Real Estate Securities ..............ccooooviiiiiiiiinn, 350,498 - -
Defined Contribution Investments ................cccoooiiiii, 673,922 - -
Receivables:
ACCOUNLS = Nt ... - - 120
COoNIIDULIONS ...t e eaees 16,957 - -
Accrued INterest ... 13,135 38 15
LOBINS ittt h e e e tt e et e e aeeennaeeen e e e enteennraeenneean 32,559 - -
SecUrities SOl ... 81,077 - -
Prepaid EXPENSES ....c..iiiiiii e 73 - -
Securities Lending Collateral .............ccc.ooiiiiiiiii 395,085 - -
Restricted Cash and Investments ... - - 10,205
Capital Assets - Depreciable .............ccooouiiiiiiiii e 1,275 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 5,038,596 4,675 $ 39,593
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...t 6,113 - $ -
Accrued Wages and BENefits ............coceiiiuiiiiiiiiic e 783 - -
Deposits/Advances from Others ............ccocviiiiiiiiiie i 7,200 - 10,977
Sundry Trust Liabilities ..........ccovioiiieeic e - - 28,616
DROP Liability ........cccooiiiiiiiii 360,758 - -
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation ............ccccceovieiiiiieieeciieieeeee 607 - -
Net Pension Obligation ............ccociiiiiieoiee e 628 - -
Securities Lending Obligations.............coouiiiiiiiiiiie e 395,085 - -
Securities Purchased ... 203,700 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 974,874 - $ 39,593
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits and Other PUrpoSes ...........ccoceeveveeiiiriencrinnnn. $ 4,063,722 $ 4,675

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Pension &
Employee Investment
Savings Trust Trust Total
ADDITIONS
Employer ContribULIONS .........cc.oiiiiieiiee e e e s $ 248,677 $ - $ 248,677
Employee CoNtriDULIONS .........cooiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e 95,345 - 95,345
Retiree ContribUtioNS ..........ouiiii e 7,483 - 7,483
Contributions to Pooled Investments ... - 4,574 4,574
Earnings on Investments:
Investment Income (Loss) . (1,012,535) 159 (1,012,376)
INVESIMENt EXPENSE ...ovniiiiii e (19,661) - (19,661)
Net Investment INCOME (LOSS) .. ..nenininiii e (1,032,196) 159 (1,032,037)
Securities Lending Income:
GroSS EaMiNGS .....oeiiiii e 11,607 - 11,607
Borrower Rebates ... (4,944) - (4,944)
Administrative Expenses (Lending Agent) .........cccooeeiiiiiiii el (1,754) - (1,754)
Net Securities Lending Income 4,909 - 4,909
Other Income:
Litigation ProCeEAS ........ouiiiiii e 325 - 325
TOTAL OPERATING ADDITIONS (675,457) 4,733 (670,724)
DEDUCTIONS
DROP INtErest EXPENSE ......vieiieii e e 27,098 - 27,098
Benefit and Claim Payments ...........cuoiiiiiiiiieeceie ettt 373,495 - 373,495
Distributions from Pooled Investments ....... ... - 4,484 4,484
ADMINISTIAION ..o s 15,057 - 15,057
TOTAL OPERATING DEDUCTIONS ........... 415,650 4,484 420,134
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (1,091,107) 249 (1,090,858)
Net Assets at Beginning Of YEAI ........c.veioiiiieieeceeeee e 5,154,829 4,426 5,159,255
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR ...... $ 4,063,722 $ 4,675 $ 4,068,397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (In Thousands)

The City of San Diego (the “City”) adopted its current charter on April 7, 1931 and operates as a municipality in accordance
with State laws. Since adoption, the City Charter has been amended several times. The most recent amendments were
added with voter approval of Propositions C and D in the November 4, 2008 election. Proposition C amended the City Charter
to designate the use of lease revenues from Mission Bay Park, exceeding certain thresholds, 75% for capital improvements in
Mission Bay Park and 25% for capital improvements in other coastal and regional parks. Proposition D amended the Municipal
Code section 56.54 to make consumption of alcoholic beverages unlawful at all City parks.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies:

a. Financial Reporting Entity

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the primary government and its component units, entities for
which the primary government is considered to be financially accountable.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the primary government's
operations and as a result, data from these units are combined with data of the primary government (references within this
document to “the City” are referring to the primary government). Component units should be included in the reporting
entity financial statements using the blending method if either of the following criteria is met:

i.  The component unit’s governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of the primary government
(the City).

ii. The component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the primary government or otherwise
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary government even though it does not provide services directly
to it.

Included within the reporting entity as blended component units are the following:

e  Centre City Development Corporation

« City of San Diego/Metropolitan Transit Development Board Authority
e  Community Facilities and Other Special Assessment Districts
e  Convention Center Expansion Financing Authority

e  Public Facilities Financing Authority

e Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego

e San Diego Data Processing Corporation

« San Diego Facilities and Equipment Leasing Corporation

o  San Diego Industrial Development Authority

e San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District #1

e  